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A MESSAGE 
FROM  GENERAL PRESIDENT 
JIMMY WILLIAMS, JR.
MEMBER ENGAGEMENT

As we grapple with political and economic instability in 
both the United States and Canada, it is more important 
than ever to stay active and engaged within our union. 
By year’s end, both nations will have held elections. Each 
is wrestling with a volatile economy and the United 
States is experiencing a contentious political climate 
with an increasingly aggressive Supreme Court.

We must double down on our efforts to build our union 
and recommit ourselves to standing shoulder to shoulder 
for better lives for ourselves and our children. Our union 
will only ever be as strong as we are dedicated and united.

We recently conducted a poll of our U.S. membership to 
better understand where we all stand on certain issues. 
Most of this Journal will focus on what we found. I don’t 
think the results were too surprising—we mostly agree on 
major issues and on the priorities the union should have, 
and we remain relatively split on partisan political issues. 
That shouldn’t come as a surprise to many of us. We plan 
to follow up on this survey with a more in-depth member 
focus group, so we can dig in deeper on not only where we 
stand, but why. We also plan on doing similar polling of our 
Canadian members.

U.S. PENSION UPDATE

While U.S. markets have been volatile, remember that our 
pension Rehabilitation Plan was designed to withstand a 
certain amount of instability. I was pleased to see that a 
majority of our members indicated that they were supportive 
of the Rehabilitation Plan, and I believe that we will see the 
fruits of our plan play out in the coming years. This is further 
proof that we need to consistently communicate directly 
with our membership.

Pension plans are complicated and need constant attention. 
In addition to the membership education we rolled out 
on our pension plan, we closely monitor all of the fund 

professionals to ensure that our needs are being met. 
We recently hired a new actuary to the plan, and we are 
constantly evaluating the performance of our professionals, 
including our investment manager.

Please stay engaged and informed on what is happening 
with our pension plan so you can plan appropriately for 
retirement.

GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

A big takeaway from our member survey is that collectively, 
we believe that the IUPAT should take proactive efforts 
to engage in politics around issues of importance. It is 
important to note that when we make an endorsement, 
either of a candidate or a piece of legislation, it is because 
they line up with issues of importance to our members and 
our industry.

The top two issues that our members support are prevailing 
wage and the PRO Act, which would strengthen our rights 
as workers and make it easier to form and join unions. Of 
those polled, 76 percent said they are more likely to support 
candidates who support these two policies. 

For an example of the progress already made, look no further 
than the successful efforts of District Council 51 (Maryland, 
Virginia, Washington, DC & Vicinities) this year to expand 
prevailing wage in Anne Arundel County, Maryland. For 
the PRO Act, the IUPAT and the Communications Workers 
of America (CWA) formed a “Pass the PRO Act” coalition 
of 100 unions, 50 state labor and building trades councils, 

4   |   S U M M E R  2 0 2 2   |   J O U R N A L 



more than 9 million union members, and organizations 
from the racial and climate justice movements to show that 
we are all in this together. As a result of these joint efforts, 
the PRO Act successfully passed in the House with 99.5 
percent support from House Democrats and 2.5 percent 
of House Republicans. We continue to fight in the Senate, 
with 47 Senators currently supporting it. 

Regarding infrastructure, 75 percent of us say we’re 
more likely to support candidates who support major 
infrastructure investment. We’re proud to have played 
a role in ensuring the passage of a historic infrastructure 
bill, including the largest investment in water infrastructure 
in U.S. history, the largest bridge investment since the 
construction of the interstate highway system, the largest 
federal investment in public transportation in U.S. history, 
and Davis-Bacon/prevailing wages.  

As we prepare for the U.S. midterm elections later this year, 
this survey has been invaluable in helping us identify not 
only what we care about collectively, but how we prefer 
to communicate with each other on issues and political 
endorsements. We’ll delve a bit more into detail in the 
feature section. It’s my responsibility to ensure we work 
across disagreements and find ways to work together on 
our shared, popular priorities, using every tool available to 
educate those outside of our union about what we fight 
for and why.

Lastly, here in the United States, we have had a series of 
extremely divisive and consequential rulings from the 
Supreme Court – most notably, the Dobbs decision, which 
overruled half a century of precedent and overturned the 
1973 Roe v. Wade decision, effectively allowing states 
across the country to ban abortion. Poll after poll shows 
that supermajorities of the United States support the right 
to have an abortion, and the IUPAT’s position is that this is a 
massive setback for the rights of all working people.

We released the following statement after the Dobbs 
decision was announced:

“Today is a sad day for democracy. The Supreme Court’s 
overturning of Roe is a direct attack on the working 
people of this country. This decision, made by unelected 
and unaccountable people, will hurt millions of people, 
particularly women, the poor, and disadvantaged. The 
extremists on the Supreme Court who don’t believe in 
reproductive rights also don’t believe in the most basic 
labor rights.

“The unelected Supreme Court is intent on rolling back 
long-standing rights in an effort to advance their partisan 
agenda. Their majority opinion and concurrences imply that 
they are far from satisfied and intend to further erode our 
rights including access to birth control, to marry who we 
please, and to love whom we choose. This court could very 
well extend rulings leading to nationwide right-to-work in 
a similar manner. 

“I believe that we all have a responsibility to take part in 
the fight to come. Make no mistake, the courts have no 
intention of stopping here. The same Justices that are intent 
on overturning decades of rights believe firmly in eroding 
our rights at work. The labor movement cannot be silent on 
this issue, because it is coming for us too.”

Put plainly, this decision negatively impacts thousands of our 
union sisters and many of our families. The same Supreme 
Court Justices who rolled back women’s reproductive rights 
have also signaled they will do the same for rights in the 
workplace, including rolling back basic safety protections 
and passing right-to-work laws, which have had devastating 
consequences on states that have adopted them. We cannot 
sit on the sidelines. This fight is emblematic of a larger 
battle to thwart the erosion of our rights that generations 
of our union brothers and sisters have fought so hard to 
establish and win. This is our moment to work together 
across differences, to hold the line, and chart a positive path 
forward that we all deserve.

CONCLUSION

As I mentioned above, this Journal will focus heavily on 
the recent membership survey results. We will share some 
interesting findings and give examples to better inform you 
on what our union is doing and why. 

In the last Journal we discussed meeting the moment. I 
believe that moment is still here and we can still take 
advantage of the many opportunities before us. But make 
no mistake, every single opportunity depends on our rank-
and-file. We must get engaged and we must stay involved, 
because staff cannot accomplish this alone. We must unite 
across District Councils, regions, and countries and redouble 
our efforts to organize and build power.
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MENSAJE DEL 
PRESIDENTE GENERAL, 
JIMMY WILLIAMS, JR.
COMPROMISO DE LOS MIEMBROS

Mientras nos enfrentamos a la inestabilidad política y 
económica tanto en Estados Unidos como en Canadá, 
es más importante que nunca mantener la actividad y el 
compromiso dentro de nuestro sindicato. Para finales del 
año, ambos países habrán celebrado elecciones. Cada uno 
de ellos se enfrenta a una economía volátil y Estados Unidos 
vive un clima político conflictivo con una Corte Suprema 
cada vez más agresiva.

Debemos redoblar nuestros esfuerzos para construir 
nuestro sindicato y volver a comprometernos a permanecer 
codo a codo para así lograr una vida mejor para nosotros 
y nuestros hijos. Nuestro sindicato será tan fuerte como lo 
sea nuestra dedicación y unión.

Hace poco, llevamos a cabo una encuesta entre nuestros 
miembros de los Estados  Unidos para comprender mejor 
cuál es la posición de cada uno de nosotros en determinadas 
cuestiones. La mayor parte de esta Revista se centrará en lo 
que hemos descubierto. No creo que los resultados sean 
demasiado sorprendentes: estamos mayoritariamente de 
acuerdo en los temas principales y en las prioridades que 
debe tener el sindicato, y seguimos relativamente divididos 
en cuestiones políticas partidistas. Eso no debería ser una 
sorpresa para muchos de nosotros. Tenemos previsto hacer 
un seguimiento de esta encuesta con un grupo de enfoque 
de miembros más exhaustivos, de modo que podamos 
profundizar no solo en nuestra posición, sino también en 
los motivos. También queremos llevar a cabo una encuesta 
similar para nuestros miembros canadienses.

ACTUALIZACIÓN DE LA PENSIÓN EN EE.UU 

Aunque los mercados estadounidenses han sido volátiles, 
recuerde que nuestro Plan de Rehabilitación de pensiones 
fue diseñado para soportar cierta inestabilidad. Me ha 
alegrado ver que la mayoría de nuestros miembros han 
manifestado su apoyo al Plan de Rehabilitación, y creo que 
veremos sus frutos en los próximos años. Esto es una prueba 
más de que siempre debemos comunicarnos directamente 
con nuestros miembros.

Los planes de pensiones son complicados y necesitan 
atención constante. Además de la formación de los afiliados 
sobre nuestro plan de pensiones, seguimos de cerca a 
todos los profesionales del fondo para asegurarnos de que 
se satisfagan nuestras necesidades. Recientemente hemos 
contratado a un nuevo actuario para el plan, y estamos 
evaluando constantemente el rendimiento de nuestros 
profesionales, incluyendo a nuestro gestor de inversiones.

Les rogamos que se mantengan al tanto de lo que ocurre 
con nuestro plan de pensiones para que puedan planificar 
adecuadamente su jubilación.

ASUNTOS GUBERNAMENTALES

Una de las principales conclusiones de nuestra encuesta a 
los miembros es que, colectivamente, creemos que el IUPAT 
debe ser más proactivo para participar en la política en 
torno a temas de importancia. Es importante señalar que 
cuando damos nuestro apoyo, ya sea a un candidato o a 
una ley, es porque coinciden con cuestiones de importancia 
para nuestros miembros y nuestra industria. 

Los dos temas más importantes que apoyan nuestros 
miembros son el salario predominante y la Ley  PRO, que 
reforzaría nuestros derechos como trabajadores y facilitaría 
la formación de sindicatos y la afiliación a los mismos. De las 
personas encuestadas, el 76% dijo que es más probable que 
apoyen a los candidatos que respaldan estas dos políticas.

Para ver un ejemplo del progreso hasta ahora, basta 
con ver los exitosos esfuerzos del Consejo del Distrito 51 
(Maryland, Virginia, Washington, DC y alrededores) este 
año para ampliar el salario predominante en el condado 
de Anne Arundel, Maryland. Para la Ley PRO, el IUPAT y 
Communications Workers of America (CWA) formaron una 
coalición “Pass the PRO Act” (Aprueben la Ley PRO) de 
100 sindicatos, 50 consejos laborales y de la construcción 
estatales, más de 9 millones de miembros de sindicatos 
y organizaciones de los movimientos de justicia racial y 
climática para mostrar que estamos todos juntos en esto. 
Como resultado de estos esfuerzos conjuntos, la Ley PRO 
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se aprobó con éxito en la Cámara de Representantes con el 
99.5% de apoyo de los demócratas de la Cámara y el 2.5% 
de los republicanos. Seguimos luchando en el Senado, con 
47 senadores que la apoyan actualmente. 

En cuanto a la infraestructura, el 75% de nosotros dice que 
es más probable que apoyemos a los candidatos que apoyan 
las grandes inversiones en infraestructura. Nos enorgullece 
haber influido en la aprobación de un proyecto de ley de 
infraestructura histórico, que incluye la mayor inversión 
en infraestructura hídrica de la historia de Estados Unidos, 
la mayor inversión en puentes desde la construcción del 
sistema de autopistas interestatales, la mayor inversión 
federal en transporte público de la historia de Estados 
Unidos y la ley Davis-Bacon/salarios regulados.

Mientras nos preparamos para las elecciones intermedias 
de los Estados Unidos a finales de este año, esta encuesta 
ha sido muy valiosa para ayudarnos a identificar no solo 
lo que nos preocupa colectivamente, sino también cómo 
preferimos comunicarnos entre nosotros sobre temas 
y apoyos políticos. Profundizaremos un poco más en la 
sección de novedades. Es mi responsabilidad asegurarme 
de que trabajemos a pesar de los desacuerdos y de que 
encontremos formas de colaborar en nuestras prioridades 
populares compartidas, utilizando todas las herramientas 
disponibles para educar a quienes no pertenecen a nuestro 
sindicato sobre lo que luchamos y por qué.

Por último, aquí en los Estados Unidos, hemos tenido una 
serie de fallos extremadamente divisivos y consecuentes de la 
Corte Suprema, más notablemente, la decisión Dobbs, que 
anuló medio siglo de precedentes y revocó la sentencia de 
1973 Roe v. Wade, permitiendo que los estados de todo el 
país prohíban el aborto. Una encuesta tras otra muestra que 
las supermayorías de los Estados Unidos apoyan el derecho 
a abortar, y la posición del IUPAT es que esto es un enorme 
paso atrás para los derechos de todos los trabajadores. 

Tras el anuncio de la decisión de Dobbs, publicamos la 
siguiente declaración: 

“Hoy es un día triste para la democracia. La revocación de 
la Corte Suprema de Roe es un ataque directo al pueblo 
trabajador de este país. Esta decisión, tomada por personas 
no elegidas y que no rinden cuentas, perjudicará a millones 
de personas, especialmente a las mujeres, los pobres y los 
desfavorecidos. Los extremistas de la Corte Suprema que no 
creen en los derechos reproductivos tampoco creen en los 
derechos laborales más básicos.

La Corte Suprema, que no ha sido elegida, tiene la 
intención de hacer retroceder derechos de larga data en un 
esfuerzo por avanzar en su agenda partidista. Su opinión 
mayoritaria y sus concurrencias implican que están lejos de 
estar satisfechos y pretenden erosionar aún más nuestros 
derechos, incluidos el acceso al control de la natalidad, a 
casarnos con quien nos plazca y a amar a quien elijamos. 
Esta corte podría muy bien extender los fallos que favorecen 
el derecho al trabajo a nivel nacional de manera similar. 

Creo que todos tenemos la responsabilidad de participar en 
la lucha que se avecina. No se equivoquen, los tribunales 
no tienen intención de detenerse aquí. Los mismos jueces 
que se empeñan en anular décadas de derechos están 
convencidos de que hay que erosionar nuestros derechos 
en el trabajo. El movimiento obrero no puede callar en este 
tema, porque esto también viene a por nosotros”.

Por decirlo claramente, esta decisión afecta negativamente 
a miles de nuestras hermanas sindicalistas y a muchas de 
nuestras familias. Los mismos jueces de la Corte Suprema que 
hicieron retroceder los derechos reproductivos de las mujeres 
también han señalado que harán lo mismo con los derechos 
en el lugar de trabajo, incluidos el retroceso de las protecciones 
básicas de seguridad y la aprobación de leyes de derecho al 
trabajo, que han tenido consecuencias devastadoras en los 
estados que las han adoptado. No podemos quedarnos de 
brazos cruzados. Esta lucha es emblemática de una batalla 
más amplia para frustrar la erosión de nuestros derechos que 
generaciones de nuestros hermanos y hermanas sindicalistas 
han luchado tanto para establecer y ganar. Este es nuestro 
momento para trabajar juntos a pesar de las diferencias, para 
mantener la línea y trazar un camino positivo hacia el futuro 
que nos merecemos.

CONCLUSIÓN

Como he mencionado anteriormente, esta Revista se 
centrará en gran medida en los resultados de la reciente 
encuesta a los miembros. Compartiremos algunas 
conclusiones interesantes y daremos ejemplos para informar 
mejor sobre lo que hace nuestro sindicato y por qué. 

En la última Revista hablamos sobre adaptarse a las 
circunstancias. Creo que ese momento continúa presente y aún 
podemos aprovechar las muchas oportunidades que tenemos 
ante nosotros. Pero no se equivoquen, todas las oportunidades 
dependen de nuestras bases. Debemos comprometernos y 
seguir involucrándonos, porque el personal no puede lograrlo 
solo. Debemos unirnos a través de los Consejos de los distritos, 
las regiones y los países y redoblar nuestros esfuerzos para 
organizar y consolidar el poder.
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A REPORT FROM GENERAL SECRETARY-TREASURER GREGG SMITH
If you caught my message in the last Journal around 
complacency, you’ll remember the emphasis I put on member 
engagement. Every staff member of the IUPAT, both elected 
and appointed, has a specific obligation to represent our 
membership to the best of their ability. They have two primary 
responsibilities: to build a stronger union and to administer a 
functioning union structure. 

Rank-and-file members have an even more important 
responsibility. No matter how dedicated and effective our 
staff may be, the IUPAT cannot function without an active and 
engaged membership. The power of the IUPAT can be directly 
traced to how engaged our rank-and-file members are. 

The IUPAT was founded 135 years ago in an act of solidarity 
of workers across numerous trades spread out over an entire 
continent. We built an organization where there was none 
and have successfully raised industry standards and working 
conditions for millions of people over an entire century. 

The founding members of our union had no choice but to 
be engaged. They organized their locals and brought in tens 
of thousands of members each year. For many in the IUPAT 
today, engaging with their union feels like a choice rather 
than a necessity. 

I am here to plead with you that it is not a choice. It is every 
bit as necessary today as it was in 1887. Workers across North 
America need us to fight, they need us to show up to local 
meetings, and they need our feet on the streets demanding 
accountability from politicians and bosses. We cannot do any 
of that without pushing every single one of us to get involved.

Our power lies within our bonds together. We are a collective 
body—a union of workers—who must engage in a collective 
struggle with the immense challenges we face. Ultimately, 
we are only accountable to each other, and our success and 
ability to meet the current moment lies solely within our 
ability to come together and demand what we are owed. 
We can and must work together across our differences and 
backgrounds. I, myself, am from a very conservative area and 
I’m a gun owner. But I work like hell for our union and for the 
betterment of all of us because our mission is so much bigger 
than me as an individual. 

The theme of this Journal is member engagement because 
there is no greater factor more important in the success of 
your union than your involvement. Regardless of how you 
feel about the direction of our union, you need to show up 
to a local meeting and get to work building an IUPAT for our 
children and grandchildren. 

ON THE IMPORTANCE OF MEMBER ENGAGEMENT
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INFORME DEL SECRETARIO GENERAL Y TESORERO GREGG SMITH
Si han visto mi mensaje en la última Revista sobre la 
complacencia, recordarán el énfasis que puse en el compromiso 
de los miembros. Todos los miembros del personal del IUPAT, 
tanto los electos como los designados, tienen una obligación 
específica de representar a nuestros miembros de la mejor 
forma posible. Tienen dos responsabilidades principales: 
Construir un sindicato más fuerte y administrar una estructura 
sindical operativa. 

Los miembros de las bases tienen una responsabilidad aún 
más importante. Por muy dedicado y eficaz que sea nuestro 
personal, el IUPAT no puede funcionar sin miembros activos 
y comprometidos. El poder del IUPAT puede atribuirse 
directamente al grado de compromiso de nuestros miembros 
de las bases. 

El IUPAT se fundó hace 135 años en un acto de solidaridad 
de los trabajadores de numerosos oficios repartidos por todo 
un continente. Construimos una organización donde no la 
había, y hemos conseguido elevar las normas del sector y las 
condiciones de trabajo de millones de personas durante todo 
un siglo. 

Los miembros fundadores de nuestro sindicato no tuvieron 
más elección que comprometerse. Organizaron sus sindicatos 
locales y aportaron decenas de miles de miembros cada año. 
Para muchos en el IUPAT hoy en día, comprometerse con su 
sindicato parece una opción más que una necesidad. 

Estoy aquí para rogarles que no sea una opción. Es tan 
necesario hoy como lo era en 1887. Los trabajadores de 
toda Norteamérica necesitan que luchemos, necesitan que 
acudamos a las reuniones de los sindicatos y nos necesitan 
en las calles para exigir responsabilidades a los políticos y a 
los empresarios. No podemos hacer nada de eso sin que cada 
uno de nosotros se involucre.

Nuestro poder reside en nuestros vínculos. Somos un cuerpo 
colectivo (un sindicato de trabajadores) que debe emprender 
una lucha colectiva con los inmensos desafíos a los que nos 
enfrentamos. En última instancia, solo somos responsables los 
unos ante los otros, y nuestro éxito y capacidad para afrontar 
el momento actual reside únicamente en nuestra capacidad 
para unirnos y exigir lo que se nos debe. Podemos y debemos 
trabajar juntos por encima de nuestras diferencias y orígenes. 
Yo mismo procedo de un area muy conservadora y soy 
propietario de un arma. Pero trabajo con locura por nuestro 
sindicato y por la mejora de todos nosotros porque nuestra 
misión es mucho más grande que yo como individuo. 

El tema de esta Revista es el compromiso de los miembros 
porque no hay factor más importante para el éxito de su 
sindicato que su participación. Independientemente de lo 
que piensen sobre la dirección de nuestro sindicato, tienen 
que acudir a una reunión del sindicato local y ponerse a 
trabajar para construir el IUPAT que queremos para nuestros 
hijos y nietos. 

SOBRE LA IMPORTANCIA DEL COMPROMISO DE LOS MIEMBROS
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George Galis joined District Council 57/Local Union 327 (Charleroi, Pennsylvania) at the age of 16. He worked as a 
painter through his college years and up until 1983 when he was appointed as an Organizer for LU 6 (Pittsburgh). 
In 1986, he was elected Business Manager/Financial Secretary of LU 6 and served in that capacity until being 
appointed as a General Representative for the IUPAT in 1993. 

In 2002, Brother Galis began serving as General Secretary-Treasurer. He was unanimously elected to that position 
at the IUPAT’s 29th General Convention in 2004. He also served on the Board of Trustees for the IUPAT Finishing 
Trades Institute, the Labor Management Cooperation Initiative, and the IUPAT Industry Pension Fund. Brother Galis 
retired as General Secretary-Treasurer in 2021.

IUPAT (1972-2021)

George Galis

Our union is shaped day in and day out by the staff of the IUPAT International and affiliated funds. We honor 
those retired staff members who dedicated their lives to our union and thank them for all that they have done 
for us. Enjoy your retirement, sisters and brothers!

Bill Candelori joined District Council 21/Local Union 1107 (Philadelphia) in 1980 as a commercial painter and 
journeyman. He served in many elected positions over the years, including Warden of LU 1107, Delegate to DC 21, 
Business Representative to DC 21, and Business Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of DC 21. 

In 1996, Brother Candelori was elected to serve as the first Secretary-Treasurer of the IUPAT Eastern Regional 
Conference of Painters and Allied Trades (ERC). In 1998, he was elected by the General Executive Board (GEB) to 
serve as General Vice President (GVP) for the Eastern Region. At the IUPAT’s 28th General Convention in 1999, he 
was elected to his first full term as GVP. By virtue of his office, he became President of the ERC. He also served on 
the Board of Trustees for the IUPAT Finishing Trades Institute, the Labor Management Cooperation Initiative, and 
the IUPAT Industry Pension Fund of the United States. 

In 2013, while fulfilling his duties as GVP, Bill was selected by the GEB to serve out a remaining term as the Executive 
General Vice President (EGVP).  At the 32nd General Convention in 2019, he was elected to his fifth term as GVP 
for the Eastern region. He held that position until his retirement.

Jack Hayn joined District Council 6/Local Union 181 (Cleveland) in 1986. A glazier by trade, Brother Hayn was 
highly active on the District Council and Local Union levels before joining the IUPAT as Assistant to the General 
President in 2003. In 2009, he was tasked with additional responsibilities, making his title Assistant to the 
General President/AFL-CIO Liaison. 

In later years, Brother Hayn served as Director of Community Affairs and Administrator of The PATCH 
Foundation. In 2020, he was appointed as Special Assistant to the General President and remained in that 
position until his retirement. 

IUPAT (1980-2021)

IUPAT (1986-2021)

William Candelori, Jr.

Jack Hayn

IUPAT INTERNATIONAL STAFF RETIREES
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Mike Heinz is a longtime member of District Council 5/Local Union 1238 (Seattle). He is a certified floorcovering 
professional and has worked in all facets of the industry. In 2016, he joined the Labor Management Cooperation 
Initiative as a Western Region Industry Liaison and remained in that position until his retirement. 

Andrew Larson joined District Council 78/Local Union 452 (West Palm Beach, Florida) as an industrial painter in 
1985. In 1994, he began working with the IUPAT Job Corps Program as the Painting and Drywall Instructor at the 
Miami Job Corps Center. 

Brother Larson joined the IUPAT Job Corps Program as Technical Assistance Coordinator in 2003. He became 
National Project Coordinator in 2006 and held that position until his retirement. 

Tim Maitland joined District Council 78/Local Union 452 (West Palm Beach, Florida) in 1986 as an apprentice 
painter. He held several positions with DC 78 and LU 452 throughout the years before being elected as Business 
Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of DC 78 in 2004. 

Brother Maitland served as DC 78 BM/ST until May 2012, when he joined the IUPAT as Delinquency Officer, 
working in conjunction with the Industry Pension Fund. In October 2013, the position of Delinquency Officer 
was moved to the Industry Pension Fund. Brother Maitland was appointed as Deputy Fund Administrator in 
April 2015. In October 2016, he became Fund Administrator for the Industry Pension Fund and remained in that 
position until his retirement.

Vicki Forgac McMillan joined District Council 51/Local Union 1937 (Maryland, Virginia, Washington, DC & Vicinities) 
in 2011. Her first position was with the Labor Management Cooperation Initiative as Senior Administrative 
Staff. In 2017, she became Executive Administrative Assistant to General Secretary-Treasurer George Galis and 
remained in that position until her retirement.

Dan Penski joined District Council 4/Local Union 660 (Buffalo, New York) in 1974 as a glassworker. In 1979, he 
became an apprentice glazier and would move on to become a journeyman glazier, foreman for various glass 
companies signatory to LU 660, and President of LU 660. In 1998, he became the Glazing Coordinator for LU 
660 and LU 677 (Rochester), and later moved into the role of Training Director for DC 4.  

In 2004, Brother Penski began working for the Finishing Trades Institute (FTI) and the Labor Management 
Cooperation Initiative (LMCI), performing many duties that included Health and Safety Coordinator, Industry 
Liaison of the Eastern Region, and Coordinator/Instructor of the LMCI Supervisor Training Program (STP).  

In April 2007, the FTI Board of Trustees appointed Brother Penski as the Director of the FTI.  In October 2015, he 
became Special Assistant to the General President. In April 2020, he moved into the role of Apprenticeship and 
Training Representative for the LMCI and remained there until retirement. 

LMCI (1978-2021)

Job Corps (1985-2021)

Industry Pension Fund (1986-2021)

IUPAT (2011-2021)

LMCI (1974-2021)

Michael Heinz

Andrew Larson

Tim Maitland

Vicki Forgac McMillan

Daniel Penski, Sr.

J O U R N A L   |   S U M M E R  2 0 2 2   |   1 1



IUPAT INTERNATIONAL STAFF RETIREES

James Purdy has been a member of District Council 5/Local Union 740 (Portland, Oregon) since 1981. He is a glazier 
by trade with a multitude of certifications under his belt.

In 2004, he became an IUPAT Job Corps Glazing Instructor. In 2007, he moved into the role of Field Coordinator for 
the IUPAT Job Corps Program. He remained in that role until his retirement.  

In 1972, two years after an honorable discharge from the United States Marine Corps, James Reid was initiated 
as a glazier into District Council 88/Local Union 1852 (now LU 1778) in Austin, Texas. In 1978, he became 
an Apprenticeship Instructor for LU 1778 and Training Director in 1980. In 1982, he was appointed Business 
Representative of LU 1778, and also worked as an Organizer for the next nine years. In 1992, he was elected 
Business Manager/Financial Secretary for his Local Union.

In 1994, Brother Reid was hired by the IUPAT to work for the office of the General President. Over the next 17 years, 
he held the positions of Organizer, General President’s Representative, and Assistant to the General President. 

In 2011, he was appointed as General Vice President (GVP) for the Western Region. He also served on the Board 
of Trustees for the IUPAT Finishing Trades Institute, the Labor Management Cooperation Initiative, and the IUPAT 
Industry Pension Fund. He retired as GVP in August 2015.

In October 2019, Brother Reid came out of retirement to serve in the position of Special Assistant to the General 
President through December 2021.

Kenneth E. Rigmaiden joined District Council 16/Local Union 1288 following his graduation from California State 
University in San Jose in 1977. He immediately enrolled in the floor covering the apprenticeship training program 
of Local Union 1288 and received certificates of completion from the IUPAT’s International Joint Apprenticeship 
Training Fund and the State of California Division of Apprenticeship Standards in 1980.

Brother Rigmaiden remained a floor covering installer in San Jose, and in the six years that followed, he served 
as an Executive Board Member, Trustee,  Vice President, and President of Local Union 1288. He also served as an 
instructor for floor covering installation in Local Union 1288’s apprenticeship training program.

In 1986, Brother Rigmaiden was elected as Business Representative for Local Union 1288. Some noted 
accomplishments during his seven-year tenure included administrating a residential collective bargaining 
agreement that served to recapture market share and the amalgamation of several local unions in his region to 
form Local Union 12.

In 1993, he was elected Business Manager for Local Union 12 and participated in the first region-wide collective 
bargaining agreement for Northern California. Moreover, he was involved in the merger of several union health and 
welfare, training and vacation/holiday trust funds, and the streamlining of member services for plan participants.  

Job Corps (1981-2021)

IUPAT (1972-2021)

IUPAT (1977-2021)

James Purdy

James Reid

Kenneth E. Rigmaiden
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Mark Van Zevern joined District Council 16/Local Union 1176 (San Leandro, California) as an industrial painter 
apprentice in 1974. Upon completing his apprenticeship, he worked as a painter journey worker at the Mare Island 
Naval Shipyard in Vallejo, California. In 1978, he was elected to serve as the Secretary-Treasurer for the Federal 
Employee Metal Trades Council. Five years later, he was elected as an IUPAT Business Representative for LU 1176. In 
the following years, he also served as an Organizer and Assistant Business Manager/Secretary-Treasurer for District 
Council 16.  

Brother Van Zevern has served as a Trustee on a number of boards in his career, including the IUPAT Finishing Trades 
Institute, the Labor Management Cooperation Initiative, and the IUPAT Industry Pension Fund.

In 2015, he was appointed to serve as General Vice President for the Western Region and remained in that role 
until his retirement.

Brother Rigmaiden was selected to serve as a General Representative in 1996. His duties in this post included 
labor-management relations, contract administration, grievance and arbitration, organizing, education, and 
training in 18 western states.

In 1997, he continued his education by earning a degree in labor studies from the George Meany Center/Antioch 
University. Shortly thereafter, he was selected to serve as an Assistant to the General President with specific duties 
in national agreements and jurisdiction maintenance. During that time, he served on the National Maintenance 
Agreement Policy Committee (NMAPC), the General President’s Project Maintenance Agreement Committee, 
and the General President’s Project Review Committee.

Brother Rigmaiden also served as the National Project Coordinator for the IUPAT Job Corps Program. This position 
required the oversight of a training program comprised of nearly 60 instructors throughout the United States and 
administering U.S. Department of Labor contracts of approximately $6 million annually. Brother Rigmaiden also 
served as a Director of the United Way. 

In 2002, Brother Rigmaiden was elevated to the position of Executive General Vice President (EGVP). As EGVP, he 
was the general administrator of the International’s affairs and assigned tasks to the IUPAT board members and 
staff. Furthermore, he coordinated national union meetings, conferences, and the General President’s schedule. 

Brother Rigmaiden also served as Co-chair for the IUPAT Finishing Trades Institute, the Labor Management 
Cooperation Initiative, and the IUPAT Industry Pension Fund. He served as a Trustee on the AFL-CIO Housing 
Investment Trust and was a member of the Board of Directors of several AFL-CIO constituencies and allied groups.

In 2013, he was unanimously elected as General President by the IUPAT General Executive Board. He remained 
in that position until his retirement. Soon after his retirement, he was honored as General President Emeritus.

IUPAT (1974-2021)

Mark Van Zevern
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ORGANIZING UPDATEORGANIZING UPDATE
Director of Organizing Shane Smith

An Injury to One is an Injury to All

Recently, our union surveyed the membership with questions 
ranging from how we are serving our members, to the 
pension, and organizing. One of the questions in that survey 
talked about how we at the IUPAT are making a conscious 
effort to organize undocumented and immigrant workers 
and how it would improve our ability to raise wages. So, I 
would like to give everyone some information on why this is 
a priority for the IUPAT. 

A growing number of employers around the country have 
started to adopt a business model based on wage theft and 
the exploitation of immigrant workers, which they expect 
to go unreported because of workers’ fear of deportation.  
Wage theft and worker misclassification are the biggest 
threat to our ability to bargain collectively for increases in our 
benefits and wages.  The Economic Policy Institute estimates 
that in our 10 most populated states, over $8 billion a year is 

stolen from workers by their employers.  In construction, the 
number is so high that no one has been able to calculate it 
on a national level.  

Currently, undocumented workers make up 45 percent of 
all painters in the United States, according to data from the 
American Community Survey. In some states, like Texas, our 
second most populated state, undocumented workers make 
up 50 percent of the entire construction workforce. So, in 
order for us to push back against these practices and level 
the playing field for our employers, we must organize and 
educate the undocumented workers to take a stand in their 
workplace and demand better. If we allow these employers 
to continue to exploit workers, we will lose market share. 
Without good market share, it is much harder to win good 
raises for you at the bargaining table.

In Spring 2021, District Council 16 members and allies joined Unforgettable Coatings 
workers at rallies to highlight the company’s unscrupulous business practices.
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Las Vegas (District Council 16) 

In Las Vegas, immigrant workers, risking employer retaliation, 
have been standing up and demanding to be paid correctly. 
DC 16 has had an ongoing campaign against Unforgettable 
Coatings since 2019. Unforgettable Coatings employs 
hundreds of painters in four states. DC 16 first began its 
campaign by educating and assisting the workers in providing 
evidence to the Department of Labor’s (DOL) Wage and 
Hour Division. Once the DOL began interviewing workers, 
in an attempt to deter them from providing evidence, 
Unforgettable Coatings sent letters telling all workers that the 
DOL would ask them about their status in the United States. 
The workers fought back, and in 2020, the DOL opened an 
official investigation into the company, estimating that the 
company owed over $2 million in back wages. After that, 
Unforgettable Coatings continued to retaliate against the 
workers by cutting everyone’s pay and firing anyone they 
thought was associated with the union. So, District Council 
16 worked with community allies, the Department of Labor, 
and the Department of Homeland Security to find ways to get 

these workers’ protections. One such protection is deferred 
action, which allows government agencies to provide 
temporary protections and work authorization to workers 
who are a victim of or a witness to a wage labor dispute—
such as a violation of the National Labor Relations Act or, in 
the case, failure to pay overtime after 40 hours a week. We 
believe this policy can help us develop more cases and allow 
workers to come out of the shadows so that we can bring the 
fight to those that are lowering industry standards around 
the country.

There are millions of workers in the construction industry who 
are facing horrendous working conditions on top of not being 
paid what they are owed. It is our job as a union to work to 
change that, not just for the betterment of those workers’ 
lives, but for that of our members. In the end, if a non-union 
worker is not being paid correctly it affects all of us because 
it lowers industry standards. That is why we must always take 
the position that an injury to one is an injury to all. 
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JOB CORPSJOB CORPS
CENTRAL WEST

JAMES STAATS | (410) 491-6505

LOOKING FOR QUALIFIED PRE-APPRENTICES FOR WORK IN YOUR AREA? 
CONTACT OUR JOB CORPS PLACEMENT COORDINATORS: 

CENTRAL EAST

TIM SORRELL | (202) 262-0537National Project Coordinator Lawrence Burgess

Career DayCareer Day

On May 16, 2022, a Career Day event held at the Apprenticeship Training Center in 
Chesterfield, Missouri, drew attendees from a variety of community organizations in 
the area to learn more about what a career in the IUPAT trades has to offer.

Instructors from Job Corps and District Council 58 conducted demonstrations, and 
participants had the opportunity to tackle hands-on and virtual equipment tasks. 
Contractors spoke to the group about the opportunities available to them, including 
a living wage, a pension plan, and a better quality of life. 

Drywall finishing was the most popular trade, and some contractors hired people on 
the spot. Niehaus & Weise, a drywall finishing company, hired two participants; Leech 
Painting picked up two brothers; and BTD Painting employed a high school student 
for summer help.

Upon hearing news of the day’s success, those who could not attend asked that a 
second Career Day be scheduled. The event, organized by Job Corps Field Coordinator 
Mike Anderson and District Council 58 Director of Training Kevin Harned, will be 
used as a blueprint to help other Directors of Training in the Central Region with their 
own events from rural areas to the hearts of our inner cities. 
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Building Diversity and Uplifting CommunitiesBuilding Diversity and Uplifting Communities

Many people are talking about pre-apprenticeship and youth apprenticeship programs and how they drive diversity into 
building trades apprenticeships, but what are these programs? How do they function, and what are the real benefits to 
the IUPAT and its members?  

There are two main forms of pre-apprenticeship: career exploration and apprenticeship readiness. Career exploration 
programs introduce apprentices to multiple trades or occupations, while apprenticeship readiness programs focus more 
on preparing an individual to meet entry requirements or providing advanced training to better prepare them for a 
successful outcome when they enter a registered apprenticeship program.  

Regardless of the type, the intended outcome of all pre-apprenticeship programs is placement in a registered apprenticeship 
program. That means employment and a pathway to a meaningful career with a solid, middle-class income, and paying 
into a pension fund so that they can enjoy a dignified retirement.

While it is fairly well known that the IUPAT has participated 
in registered apprenticeship for over 80 years, a lesser-known 
fact is that the IUPAT has also participated in the United States’ 
oldest and largest residential vocational training program, 
designed to prepare at-risk and underprivileged youth for 
the job market and lift them out of poverty. IUPAT Job Corps 
operates 59 programs in 32 states and has been working 
with the U.S. Department of Labor for over 53 years, since its 
inception. While other program operators provide training and 
career readiness, these function more like pre-apprenticeship 
programs, with an intended outcome of direct entry into one 
of our registered apprenticeship programs. 

The International Union of Painters and Allied Trades became a part of the program in 
1969. Since then, the IUPAT has helped thousands get union jobs and better their lives.

It seems the U.S. Department of Labor agrees, as they issued Program Instruction 
Notice 21-10 on May 20, 2022, with the intent of providing guidance to the Job 
Corps community on efforts to significantly expand and promote pre-apprenticeship 
programs for participants to enter registered apprenticeship programs. This “PIN” 
lays out the criteria for how pre-apprenticeship programs, like ours, can distinguish 
themselves from standard training programs.  

For the last several months, iFTI and Job Corps staff have been working hand-
in-hand to align our programs to take advantage of the opportunities Job Corps 
provides individuals and for our registered apprenticeship programs.  

Job Corps pre-apprenticeship is a direct path toward diversifying our existing programs, and our union, and giving these 
young members a hand up to help bring them into the middle class. It helps strengthen our union’s diversity and ensures 
that a pipeline to a meaningful career is available to everyone who wants to do the work that we do. The end result is a 
stronger membership, lengthy careers, and uplifting communities.

The U.S. Job Corps program was launched by 
President Lyndon B. Johnson in 1964 to assist young 

men and women in learning a trade or skill that 
would allow them a successful life and career.

IUPAT Job Corps National Project 
Coordinator Lawrence Burgess.
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WORKPLACE TRAINING, EDUCATION & SAFETY
Mental Health Awareness

On May 7, 2022, District Council 30’s North Central Illinois 
Finishing Trades Institute (NCIFTI) launched a new Mental 
Health Awareness course for DC 30 members. The curriculum 
was developed by DC 30 staff to increase awareness of the 
threats and impacts of mental illness in the construction 
industry, while also breaking the negative stigma associated 
with talking about mental health. In conjunction with Mental 
Health Awareness Month, DC 30 also held additional Mental 
Health Awareness course offerings in Rockford, Illinois, and 
Morton, Illinois.

The Mental Health Awareness course offers an overview 
of the different forms of mental illness, the increased 
impacts on construction workers, the importance of mental 
wellness, and access to important mental health resources. 
Participants are able to discuss current trends and statistics 
related to mental health in the construction industry, identify 
who is harmed by mental health challenges, recognize that 
mental illness is equivalent to physical illness, and identify 
the importance of self-care strategies.

“Suicide and substance use disorder are very prevalent 
in the construction industry,” said DC 30 Controller and 
Helping Hand Champion Jennifer Sherman, who was part 
of the team charged to develop and launch the course. “In 
bringing awareness to this unfortunate reality, we hope to 
help members through times of crisis, change the culture in 
the industry, and ultimately save lives.”

The course is the second offering in DC 30’s Social Safety 
Zone curriculum concept, which aims to empower members 
to become allies and advocates for safe workplaces by 
preventing harmful activity and providing social support 
to coworkers struggling at work. Other curriculum topics 
include Sexual Harassment Awareness, which launched in 
2020, and Conflict Management and Workplace Violence 
Prevention, which DC 30 plans to develop next year. 

Upon completion of the course, DC 30 members receive 
Social Safety Zone hard hat stickers to wear as a sign that 
their job site is a “safe zone,” where those struggling with a 
mental health challenge can reach out for support.

“I’m proud to say that we’ve also added this course to 
our catalog of STAR training opportunities,” shared NCIFTI 
Training Director Steve Lefaver. “This not only helps to 
incentivize participation in the new course, but it also 
expresses our organization’s strong commitment to this 
important topic.”

DISTRICT COUNCIL 30 | ILLINOIS, WISCONSIN

DC 30 members participating in the Mental 
Health Awareness course in Morton, Illinois.
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WORKPLACE TRAINING, EDUCATION & SAFETY
UPPER MIDWEST

DC 1M Community Day of Action

Expanding Opportunities with FTIUM

In addition to free training and classes, District Council 82 
and the Finishing Trades of the Upper Midwest (FTIUM) 
offer scholarships such as the annual Douglas M. Nelson 
Scholarship to provide financial assistance to students who 
wish to continue their education through the Associate of 
Applied Science (AAS) Degree in Construction Technology.

This year’s Douglas M. Nelson Scholarship recipients 
submitted a 500-word essay on their ability 
and intention to pursue their AAS degree. 
Congratulations to this year’s winners: Shylo 
Ultican, Meghan Pillow, Aaron Wehlage, Jasmine 
Rocha, Kailee Schminkey, Gabriel Corbesia, and 
Ryan Brennan.

DC 82 and FTIUM are also proud of their efforts to expand 
opportunities to local high schools, middle schools, and 
underrepresented members of our community. Of FTIUM’s 
147 graduates in 2021, nearly one in five were women and/or 
minorities, which beats the national average. Providing more 

students from diverse backgrounds with 
the tools they need to build a fulfilling 

career not only has a positive impact 
on those students but diversifies 
the local workforce and uplifts our 
communities as a whole.

DISTRICT COUNCIL 1M | MICHIGAN

DISTRICT COUNCIL 82 | MINNESOTA, MONTANA, NORTH DAKOTA, 
SOUTH DAKOTA, WISCONSIN

On May 7, 2022, over 100 District Council 1M painters, drywall 
finishers, and glaziers volunteered to spruce up the 1,800-acre 

D-Bar-A Scout Ranch in Metamora, Michigan. 

MEMBERS IN ACTION
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SERVICING UPDATE
International Servicing Director Mark Komaromi

This past year, we have seen some of our Local Unions strike for better wages, benefits, and working conditions. When we 
come together over the same issues, we can make things happen; but when divide, we cannot.

In recent years, the political arena has become divisive. Debates and disagreements are often contentious regardless of the 
topic or party, and every side often resorts to accusing the others of being uneducated or brainwashed. I make sure I vote 
for candidates who will put our members to work and won’t try to take away our collective bargaining power with right-
to-work language or strip away our right to have Project Labor Agreements (PLAs). I stay away from the wedge issues that 
divide us. 

We must present a united front to combat those who wish to topple unions. Our Servicing Department must assist in 
organizing to control the market. With better market share, we can ask for improvements to contracts to better protect our 
members. Local servicing directors and business representatives need everyone pulling in the same direction to negotiate for 
better wages and for our pension to have a strong increase in hours. 

All members must come together on what’s really important—our Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) and work 
opportunities. I challenge our members to assist local political directors, servicing directors, and business representatives in 
helping to elect people who put food on the tables. Attend local city council and school board meetings and share your 
experiences as a union member to help gain another PLA or a community benefits agreement for the betterment of all in 
our communities. Attend job fairs and recruitment functions and share your experiences as a union member to help pull in 
younger members. 

Don’t sit on the sidelines.  We must fight together to improve the quality of life for all members, no matter their background. 
Do your part to help this union grow and help make our collective bargaining power that much greater. When we win, we 
all obtain better conditions.

United Front
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Executive Director Anton Ruesing

Finding Strength in DiversityFinding Strength in DiversityFinding Strength in Diversity

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility – or DEIA. It sure 
seems like this acronym is everywhere and if you haven’t 
heard of it yet, just wait – you will soon. Governments in 
Canada and the United States, major corporations, and 
various social circles are embracing this idea. Unfortunately, 
it has proven to be politically divisive. Advocates on one side 
of the political aisle say not enough is being done, while on 
the other side, critics say this movement is going overboard.  

Unfortunately, this divide isn’t restricted to legislators on 
Capitol Hill and Parliament Hill. All too often, using the 
word “diversity” can start an argument among friends of 
different political persuasion.

So, with the risk of all of this division, why is the Finishing 
Trades Institute focused on diversity and increasing the 
number of Black, Hispanic, and women apprentices? Well, 
the simple answer is it’s the right thing to do, full stop. 
Within the ranks of the IUPAT, we are in alignment that 
we should do so. In fact, the overwhelming majority of 
members support diversity in our apprenticeship programs. 
You told us so in a recent survey of members. But we can 
go a bit deeper.

The core values of the IUPAT are about coming together 
to uplift working families, end income inequality, fight 
discrimination, promote civil rights and affordable housing, 
and battle the forces that keep people down. Becoming 
a more diverse union not only helps us uphold our values 
and accomplish our goals, but it directly benefits our 
membership as well.

There is strength in diversity. Every human being has 
both strengths and weaknesses. Imagine a job site where 
everyone is good at the same things, and bad at the same 
things. For painters, imagine everyone is great at spraying, 
but no one can handle a brush. For glaziers, imagine that 
everyone can caulk, but no one knows how to measure or 
cut metal, or install glass. We need other people who can 
complement us and pick up the slack where we are weak, 
and we can help them where we are strong.

Imagine a marriage where the couple is exactly the same. 
It may sound like a good idea, but what would happen 
if neither person is good at paying the bills or managing 
the household? What would happen if neither one knew 
how to cook, mow the lawn, do the laundry, or clean the 
house? How much conversation would there be if they both 
thought and felt the exact same way about a TV show, a 
book, or a movie? 

While these may seem like overly simplistic examples, they 
underscore how people of diverse backgrounds – ethnicity, 
race, and gender – approach things differently. They bring 
a different skill set, and look at things and solve problems 
in different ways. All of these differences can complement 
each other and bring overall strength to the group. That’s 
true on the job site, it’s true for partners or marriage, and 
it’s true for the IUPAT. 

So where are we going to find this more diverse workforce? 
We are going to have to search for it. We need to actively 
recruit new members and enroll them in our training 
ecosystem—not just the registered apprenticeship—but 
also in pre-apprenticeship programs like Job Corps.

When you look at our union logo, you see the words ONE ONE 
UNIONUNION in bold lettering. That is how we must move forward. 
Forget the division and create our ONE UNIONONE UNION  based on the 
strength of diversity.
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In 2016, Philadelphia native 
Gary Hutchinson was a 
26-year-old working at a 
bistro in the Philadelphia 
suburb of Chestnut Hill 
when his best friend, Kyle 
Dolbow, told him about 
the benefits a union career 
would offer. 

Gary took his friend’s advice to heart and decided to change 
course. Soon after, he joined District Council 21/Local Union 
252 in Philadelphia. His first two union jobs were with 
National Glass & Metal Company and Graboyes Commercial 
Window and Glass Solutions. In 2018, Gary became a first-
year apprentice with the IUPAT and began working for 
MEG Glass. In 2019, he was hired by Paul Rabinowitz Glass 
(Rabinowitz), where he remains to this day. 

On March 18, 2020, mid-apprenticeship and with a promising 
union career on the horizon, Gary received a phone call that 
forever changed his life. His parents had made a pact to end 
their lives by suicide. Sadly, Gary’s mother—his best friend 
and support system—passed away from a drug overdose. 
His father survived, but as a result of multiple strokes caused 
by the drug use, he is now living with brain damage.  

Gary, who is generally a positive, 
glass-half-full type of guy, was 
suddenly pushed into a world of 
confusion and darkness. Unanswered 
questions. No clarity. His sadness was 
real. His anxiety was real. He began to 
recognize that his mental health was 
being ripped apart by the unknown. 
He grappled with a depression so 
intense that he contemplated taking 
his own life. 

Fortunately for Gary, he had an incredible support system 
behind him—the entire staff of Rabinowitz Glass. His 
union family took it upon themselves to begin a collection 

that helped Gary and his family bury 
his mother without any financial 
burden. No one should have anxiety 
over how they’re going to afford to 
bury a loved one, and this group of 
individuals showed Gary love and 
compassion at a time when he had 
lost his own. He remarked, “I am 
forever grateful.”

Additional help came from Robert 
Molz, who was the shop steward for 
Rabinowitz at the time. He reached 
out and encouraged Gary to contact 
the Allied Trades Assistance Program 
(ATAP), in which DC 21 proudly participates. Per its website, 

“ATAP is a non-profit organization created by Philadelphia 
Trade Unions to contain costs and promote improved 
service delivery for substance use disorder, mental health 
concerns and related issues to union members, retirees 
and dependents.”

Gary made that call to ATAP and was able to find healing 
through therapy. His therapist helped him consciously 
recognize his suicidal thoughts and the negative impact 
they were having on his daily life. “With the help of therapy, 
I began to choose happiness. Instead of waiting for good 
things to happen, I became the good thing to happen. I 
became so much more empathetic to the struggles of others 
that I was more willing to help, more willing to speak up, 
and more willing to bring awareness to the unstable game 
of mental health.”

Gary’s persistence and hard work carried him through to his 
glazing apprenticeship graduation, where he spoke of his 
experiences. Overcoming his difficulties also empowered 
him to help his sisters, Paige and Jamie, through their mental 
health struggles following the death of their mother. “My 
sister, Jamie, is currently in recovery and doing incredible.  I 
talk with her every day and continue to positively reinforce 
her mindset because of the exercises and scenarios I learned 
through therapy provided by ATAP,” said Gary.   

DISTRICT COUNCIL 21 | EASTERN PENNSYLVANIA, DELAWARE, NEW JERSEY

MEMBER SPOTLIGHT
Gary Hutchinson
District Council 21/Local Union 252

Gary with his mother, Kelly.

Gary on a job for Paul 
Rabinowitz Glass.
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“This union has not only improved my skill set on the job, it enhanced my mind 
and the way I look at the world as a whole. They were there for me when I lost 
the person I loved the most in this world. I am proud to be a member of IUPAT DC 
21/LU 252. I truly believe they played a major role in saving my life and helped 
save my sisters’ lives.”

Congratulations on all that you have achieved, Gary! You are an inspiration and 
we are proud to call you our union sibling! 

IUPAT HELPING HAND
The IUPAT Helping Hand offers resources to IUPAT 
members and families seeking help for suicide 
prevention, substance use disorder, and mental 
health challenges. 

Learn more at IUPATHelpingHand.com. 

Gary with his sister, Jamie.

L to R: DC 21 Glazing Coordinator Steve Metzger, Gary Hutchinson, 
DC 21 Glazing Instructor Neil Amadio and DC 21 Assistant BM/ST & 

Local Union 252 Business Manager Mike Laughlin.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
DC 16 Day of Action

On April 23, 2022, District Council 16 staff and members joined 
community partners in organizing five Day of Action events across 
Northern California. Over 78 volunteers participated in an Earth Day creek 
cleanup; cleaned a local beach, park, and school campus; and attended 
a barbecue rally for Congressman Jimmy Panetta (D-CA, 20th District).

DISTRICT COUNCIL 16 | NORTHERN CALIFORNIA, NEVADA
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
DC 35 Steps In to Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Training

Construction has one of the highest suicide rates of any U.S. 
industry, with 53.2 suicides per 100,000 workers, according to 
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Deaths 
by suicide are also five times higher than all construction 
deaths combined. 

The team at District Council 35 is on a mission to provide its 
members and their families with services to treat substance 
use disorder and mental health challenges. Director of Health 
and Safety Mike Moreschi, Business Representative Chris 
Brennan, and Instructor Jim McCann are using their extensive 
training—and their own life experiences—to train members 
and staff on how to step in for members in need. Together, 
they have spearheaded multiple mental health initiatives, 
including classes for apprentices and a series of rank-and-file 
Peer Supporter trainings at the International level. 

Nearly 450 million people worldwide are currently living with a 
mental illness, yet around two-thirds of people with a known 
mental illness never seek treatment, according to the Anxiety 
and Depression Association of America. In the past, some 
workers may have been reluctant to acknowledge or seek 
out mental health support, but there has been a noticeable 
change in that trend, especially among younger members. 

“Five years ago, there was nothing for anyone,” said McCann, 
who teaches DC 35 apprentices Changing the Course of 
Construction and Mental Health. “Now, DC 35 is ahead of 
the pack.”

The new Peer Supporter program trains rank-and-file members 
on how to talk about mental health issues and share available 
resources with members on the job. Moreschi, Brennan, and 
McCann believe that proper training and enabling others to 
provide quality initial response services to members results in 
a multiplier effect, meaning more people can benefit. 

“We’re trying to grow an army,” said Brennan. “The goal is to 
have the trainers train their District Council members. You’re 
basically a first-responder. You really want to empower them.” 

Members who are struggling with their mental health or 
substance use disorder should know they aren’t alone. Services 
like Employee Assistance Programs at the District Council level 
are available for members and their families to connect with 
local professionals and programs. 

Brothers Moreschi, Brennan, and McCann hope that 
equipping every member with the knowledge and resources 
they need will also help change the culture throughout the 
construction industry. They also emphasized that they are just 
a phone call away for DC 35 members in need, and all calls 
are confidential. Brother Brennan can be reached at (617) 
971-7736.

“We want to make sure that everyone feels needed; everyone 
feels welcome,” said Moreschi. “It’s ok to ask for help.”

Members who want to get involved in the new Peer Supporter 
training can contact their business agent.

Visit IUPATHelpingHand.org to learn more about the IUPAT’s 
mental health and substance use disorder resources, or 
reach out to your District Council to learn about the support 
available to you.

DISTRICT COUNCIL 35 | MASSACHUSETTS, CONNECTICUT, MAINE, NEW HAMPSHIRE, 
RHODE ISLAND, VERMONT

L to R: DC 35 Director of Health and Safety Mike 
Moreschi, DC 35 Instructor Jim McCann, and DC 35 

Business Representative Chris Brennan.

To visit IUPATHelpingHand.org, scan the 
QR Code below by holding your phone’s 
camera over it. When text appears on the 
screen, press it to access the website.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
DC 53 Day of Action

Monument to Labor 

On April 19, 2022, members of District Council 53 applied 
their skills to work on the Healing House, a transitional 
living program for at-risk women ages 18 - 22. Located 
in Charleston, West Virginia, the Healing House’s mission 
is to create a safe environment for women that promotes 
healing, development, transformation, and growth in all 
areas. DC 53 Business Manager/Secretary-Treasurer Brian 
Stanley; Director of Servicing Jerry Scarbro; Organizing 
Director David Bland; DC 53 staff members Lamont Lewis, 
Rodney Skaggs, Harold Keller; and DC 53 rank-and-file 
members William Scarbro, Jared Scarbro, and Ed Sutherland 
were all present to help members of the community for 
another successful Day of Action event.

District Council 7 members joined other union volunteers to 
build a monument to remember workers who have lost their 
lives on the job earlier this year. The monument is located at 
the Municipal Dock in Escanaba, Michigan.

DISTRICT COUNCIL 53 | WEST VIRGINIA, MARYLAND, OHIO, KENTUCKY, VIRGINIA

DISTRICT COUNCIL 7 | WISCONSIN, MICHIGAN

L to R: DC 7/LU 1011 (Big Bend, Wisconsin) member Travis Cary and Escanaba 
City Council Member Todd Flath at the groundbreaking ceremony.
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Vice President Kamala Harris and Secretary of Labor Marty Walsh 
Attend Labor Rally in Philadelphia

POLITICAL ACTION

In April 2022, Vice President Kamala Harris and Secretary of Labor Marty Walsh attended a rally in Philadelphia to speak about 
the new Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) National Emphasis Program, which was launched to protect 
millions of workers from heat illness and injuries. 

The event, which was held at Sheet Metal Workers International Association Local 19’s training facility, was attended by 
hundreds, including members and representatives from District Council 21. Through the program, OSHA will conduct heat-
related workplace inspections before workers suffer completely preventable injuries, illnesses, or even worse, fatalities. 

“Every year, thousands of workers suffer heat-related injury and illness,” Vice President Harris said at the rally. “The danger 
posed by extreme heat has been ignored and overlooked for far too long, and that 
danger is only increasing.”

“Tragically, the three-year average of workplace deaths caused by heat has 
doubled since the early 1990s. These extreme heat hazards aren’t limited to 
outdoor occupations, the seasons, or geography. From farm workers in California, 
to construction workers in Texas, and warehouse workers in Pennsylvania, heat 
illness—exacerbated by our climate’s rising temperatures—presents a growing 
hazard for millions of workers,” said Secretary Walsh.

Pennsylvania Governor Tom Wolf, Philadelphia Mayor Jim Kenney, Congressman 
Dwight Evans (D-PA, 3rd District), AFL-CIO President Liz Shuler, and local Building 
Trades workers spoke at the rally about the issue and the need for union members 
to back candidates who support working people in upcoming elections.

DISTRICT COUNCIL 21 | EASTERN PENNSYLVANIA, DELAWARE, NEW JERSEY

Vice President Kamala Harris.

Secretary of Labor Marty Walsh.

Staff from DC 21 and the Philadelphia AFL-CIO with Secretary 
of Labor Marty Walsh (third from right). 
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MMP
Mobile Member Portal

You Can Now View Your: 

• Benefits

• Certifications and Completed Courses

• With an option to email to employers

• Digital Membership Card 

• Dues 

• Meeting Notifications

• News and Events

• Pension, Including Work Hours for the Previous 12 Months

You Can Now View and Edit Your: 

• Address 

• Contact Information

• Demographics

• Spoken Languages

• Member I.D. Photo

• Work Status

1. Scan this QR code with your phone’s camera to download the IUPAT Mobile Member App, or

2. Visit the Google Play Store or Apple iTunes and search for IUPAT. Direct links are available at mmp.iupat.org.

3. Open the app and click Create Account on the bottom. 

4. Enter your Member ID (located above your name on the front of this Journal), your Last Name and Date of Birth to 
Validate your account. 

5. Finally, enter your Email and Create a Password, then Login. 

Already have an account? 

Update/download the most recent version to see all of the new features.

Please contact your District Council with questions. 

The IUPAT Mobile Member Portal (MMP) 4.0 is now available! 

Download and Create an Account (New Users)
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FEATURE: MEMBER SURVEY RESULTS
We recently completed a phone survey of IUPAT members 
across the United States to gauge where we stand on 
numerous issues ranging from politics to the role of our 
union, to questions on organizing and servicing. Over the 
course of several weeks, we completed over 800 calls with 
our membership. 

Why a survey and why now? 

As you know, the IUPAT has an almost entirely new General 
Executive Board. Our new leadership team has emphasized 
member engagement as a core priority, and part of that begins 
with taking the pulse of our union. How do we feel about the 
direction of the country? What do we think the union should 
be doing to advocate better for our membership? Questions 
like these are essential to better understanding each other and 
steering our union in a direction that represents the interests 
of us all.

On the Issues

Turn on the news or pick up the newspaper and you will hear 
or read about how we are a nation divided. We’re divided 
along political lines, divided by class, and divided along racial 
fault lines. Over 135 years ago, the founders of our union 
committed to the principle of “unit[ing] into one labor 
organization all workers eligible for membership.” 

Today, we are still united around that principle. When asked 
about the union’s focus on increasing the number of Black, 
Hispanic, and women members, 65 percent of us had a 
positive view of that work, 10 percent opposed, and the 
remainder had a neutral or uncertain viewpoint. 

Unfortunately, simply believing in an ideal is not enough. We 
must redouble our efforts to fight back against corporations 
and politicians who have used race, ethnicity, gender, 
geography, and cultural differences to divide us. We must 
also hold the mirror up and examine our own internal systems 
and structures that may be leading to disparate impacts.

When we look at what motivates us at the ballot box, our 
union is largely united. 

On issues like prevailing wage, the PRO Act, expanding 
Medicare to cover prescription drugs, infrastructure 
investment, making the wealthy pay their fair share, and 
family leave, the IUPAT is united at overwhelming margins.  

What these numbers tell us is that the membership of the 
IUPAT shares a common vision of building a society where all 
workers are respected no matter where they are from or the 
color of their skin, and where all families and communities 
can thrive. Collectively, we want to leave a more just and 
equitable world for generations to come.

These issues make up the core of the IUPAT political program, 
and nearly all of our major legislative priorities are efforts to 
advance issues that IUPAT members overwhelmingly care about.

Infrastructure: In November, President Biden signed into 
law the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, providing a 
trillion-dollar influx to cities and states over the next decade. 
This historic infrastructure legislation came as a  result of 
years of effort by the IUPAT and other unions. In addition 
to funding existing programs, like reauthorizing the federal 
surface transportation program for the next five years, the 
legislation has over $100 billion in additional funding for 
major road and bridge projects. In fact, the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act is the single largest investment to 
overhaul and fix our nation’s bridges since the construction 
of the interstate highway system. 

Beyond roads and bridges, money will flow to states, 
counties, cities, and towns over the coming years to bolster 
water systems; update and upgrade ports; and transform 
transit with investments in airports, rail, and subway systems.

And our work on infrastructure is not over. No matter how 
transformational a piece of legislation is, it is still just one 
piece. We must continue to work to ensure that the projects 
being funded come with labor standards—like prevailing 
wage, the right to organize, and registered apprenticeship 
utilization. And, as money is being distributed to states and 
localities through competitive grants, District Councils must 
be ready to work with agencies to take advantage of the 
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opportunities. Recently, District Council 11 (Connecticut, 
Massachusetts, Rhode Island) worked to provide support 
for two applications by the Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge 
Authority for Department of Transportation grants. Just like 
DC 11, the IUPAT is positioned well to help add value to state 
and local agencies as they seek federal funding because of 
our training programs and pre-apprenticeship partnerships 
in many states.

Labor Law Reform: Over the last several years, we’ve 
been working together to get co-sponsors and pass the PRO 
Act through Congress. Thanks to the efforts of thousands 
of members making phone calls, sending postcards, and 
showing up at events, the PRO Act has passed the House 
twice, most recently in March of 2021. This is a huge victory 
and should not be taken lightly. Just a decade ago, during 
the push for the Employee Free Choice Act, we were not 
able to get labor law reform this far.

But, as we all know, passing the House is just one step. Over 
the last year, we have focused efforts on educating Senate 
offices about the PRO Act and pushing for a vote there. 
These efforts are not just happening in Washington, DC, but 
in the home states of key senators.

In Arizona, District Council 36 hosted an event for workers 
to share their stories about how the passage of the PRO Act 
would change their lives by giving them the ability to have a 
union election at their worksite, ending required anti-union 
meetings, and enabling them to bargain a first contract.

Just outside Washington, DC, District Council 51 (Maryland, 
Virginia, Washington, DC & Vicinities) has been part 
of a coalition of unions and advocates that has been 
bringing grassroots activism directly to their area senators, 
encouraging them to stand up, sign on, and speak out for 
the PRO Act.  

While we continue to push for the full PRO Act, we will 
continue to look for every opportunity—in Congress and in 
state legislatures—to expand and improve on the right to 
organize by all workers.

Wage Theft: Wage theft and making wealthy corporations 
pay their fair share of taxes received overwhelming support 
as priority issues among those surveyed. While wage theft in 
the form of misclassification, unpaid overtime, and prevailing 
wage violations can happen to any worker with a bad 
employer, the simple fact is that immigrant workers are the 
most vulnerable because employers think they can intimidate 
them with threats. Additionally, employers who misclassify 
workers or refuse to pay proper wages are not just cheating 
workers—they’re also not paying proper taxes. 

Recently, the United States Department of Labor announced 

a process by which workers, unions, and advocacy groups 
can request a statement of interest from the DOL to the 
Department of Homeland Security to assist immigrant 
workers involved in labor disputes. We anticipate the DHS 
will issue similar guidance about how they will handle such 
requests soon. Even as we awaited the formal process, 
District Council 36 (Southern California, Arizona) and District 
Council 77 (Georgia, Alabama, Kentucky, North Carolina, 
South Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia) have been identifying 
abusive contractors, submitting claims to the Department of 
Labor, and prepping workers to come forward and speak 
about the abuses they endure. 

The IUPAT has been leading on this issue over the last 
few years, and this latest development is a huge step in 
protecting workers, allowing them to come forward and 
report bad employers. In turn, this will level the playing field 
for contractors who play by the rules.

What is the IUPAT’s role in politics?

A big focus on our survey was the importance of member 
education. By strong majorities, IUPAT members indicated that 
they believe that our union has a responsibility to educate, 
inform, and mobilize around issues that affect our jobs. They 
also agreed that our union must be involved in advocating 
state and local governments to advance laws and policies that 
benefit us, and that we must involve our union in campaigns 
to elect candidates who support us and our issues.

It is impossible for us to effectively mobilize our union 
around core issues if we do not spend the time educating 
and informing every member around the issues. This is the 
foundation for all political work.

We know that all members are different in terms of how 
they seek and get information—through meetings, social 

Polled members overwhelmingly said it 
was very/fairly important for our union to:

Educate, inform, and mobilize union members 
on important issues that affect their jobs.

Be involved in state and local government to work for 
laws and policies that are good for union members.

Be involved in campaigns to elect candidates 
who support unions and union issues.
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media, newsletters, etc.—so we are going to be doing more 
to get the word out on different issues through different 
methods. Our strength lies in our ability to act collectively. 
Getting involved in electoral politics has to always be based 
on our issues, and our power in electoral politics comes from 
our ability to mobilize. Getting out the vote is just one facet 
of political mobilization.

How should we be communicating?

Since the way we share and receive information is vital, we 
asked a series of questions about how to best communicate 
within our union. IUPAT members indicated that when it comes 
to receiving information around elections and political topics, 
they strongly prefer it be communicated in an issue-based 
format. Rather than simply receiving a list of endorsements, 
members want information on the candidates’ positions on 
issues important to our union. 

IUPAT leadership agrees that because the IUPAT membership is 
strongly aligned around core issues, focusing on these matters 
important to us and how we can best advocate for them 
(including at the ballot box) lines up with our preferences. 

As the 2022 election season continues, be sure to keep an eye 
out for IUPAT political communications about how you can 
help in the coming months. There are a number of ways to get 
involved anytime (not just during an election season)—attend 
union meetings, volunteer to assist with a community project, or 
call your District Council and ask where they need extra hands. 

A quick and simple way that everyone one can help today is 
to scan the QR code and respond to a short survey we’ve put 
together. We want your feedback now and on future surveys.

Scan the QR Code below 
by holding your phone’s 
camera over it. When text 
appears on the screen, press 
it to open the form.
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JUSTICE FOR ALL WORKERS

IUPAT District Councils and Affiliates Rally 
to Demand Change from PPG 

On April 21, 2022, members of District Council 6 and District 
Council 9 joined other IUPAT District Councils and affiliated 
unions to demand accountability and fair wages at the PPG 
shareholders’ meeting in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 

PPG is an American Fortune 500 company and global supplier 
of paints, coatings, and specialty materials; by revenue, it is 
the largest coatings company in the world. This past year, PPG 
made over $1.6 billion in profits, while simultaneously their 
employees’ wages went down 15 percent. 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 6 | OHIO, INDIANA, KENTUCKY, PENNSYLVANIA

DISTRICT COUNCIL 9 | NEW YORK

DC 6 Business Representatives and Organizers at 
the PPG Rally in Pittsburgh included Jimmy Taylor, 
Enrique Montes, Danny Manuel, Bo Anderson, Jon 

Bettac, Tony Watroba and Tim Halas. 

DC 9 members at the PPG Rally in Pittsburgh.
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JUSTICE FOR ALL WORKERS
Women’s History Month Film Screening

Informational Picket Outside 
Rhode Island Starbucks

During Women’s History Month, District Council 9 and the 
District Council 9 Women’s Committee hosted a film screening 
of “Like A Woman,” a documentary by Gail Mooney about 
women breaking barriers in the workforce.

The film, which was shown to DC 9 members and their 
families, follows the stories of numerous women leading 
successful careers in male-dominated fields of work and 
lifestyles. Filmmaker Mooney participated in a Q&A session 
with attendees after the screening.

The DC 9 Women’s Committee is proud of the work it does 
to create awareness and educate our union siblings about 
women’s issues and women in construction.

District Council 11 staff recently joined allies in an informational 
picket outside a Starbucks location in Warwick, Rhode Island. 

Assistant to the General President Scott Duhamel, David 
Molina-Hernandez of Fuerza Laboral, Rhode Island AFL-CIO 
Digital Organizer Autumn Guillotte, Climate Jobs Rhode 
Island Organizer Erica Hammond, and staff from DC 11 all 
joined Starbucks union workers in showing their support for 
unionizing all Starbucks employees.  

DISTRICT COUNCIL 9 | NEW YORK

DISTRICT COUNCIL 11 | CONNECTICUT, 
MASSACHUSETTS, RHODE ISLAND

Filmmaker Gail Mooney answers questions following a 
screening of her film “Like a Woman” at District Council 9.
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THE SAME PEOPLE WHOTHE SAME PEOPLE WHO

ATTACK WOMEN'S RIGHTS

ALSO

ATTACK LABOR RIGHTS.

Justice for Workers at AEI

Over the past several months, the IUPAT and the community 
coalition Rise Up Together - Levantemonos have taken 
public action to stand in solidarity with the workers at AEI 
Painting Contractors, LLC against illegal misclassification and 
dangerous working conditions. 

Community groups, religious leaders, student groups, local 
politicians, and supporting unions all joined the IUPAT and 
Rise Up Together - Levantemonos Juntos for public events 
at Midtown High School in Atlanta and Kennesaw State 
University earlier this year. We will continue to stand together 
until AEI steps up to do right by its workers.

DISTRICT COUNCIL 77 | GEORGIA, ALABAMA, KENTUCKY, NORTH CAROLINA, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, TENNESSEE, VIRGINIA

JUSTICE FOR ALL WORKERS
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THE SAME PEOPLE WHOTHE SAME PEOPLE WHO

ATTACK WOMEN'S RIGHTS

ALSO

ATTACK LABOR RIGHTS.
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DISTRICT COUNCIL 
SPOTLIGHT
DISTRICT COUNCIL 9 | NEW YORK

An interview with BM/ST Joseph Azzopardi

District Council 9 Business Manager/Secretary-Treasurer 
Joseph Azzopardi took some time to chat with the Journal 
about District Council 9’s members and work. 

Tell us about yourself and share a bit about DC 9.

My name is Joseph Azzopardi, and I’m the elected Business 
Manager/Secretary-Treasurer (BM/ST) of District Council 9. In 
2001, I began my career as a glazier apprentice with District 
Council 9/Glaziers Architectural Metal and Glass Workers 
Local Union 1087, training at the Finishing Trades Institute 
of New York (FTINY). My first union position beyond a rank-
and-file member was as a Shop Steward. Over the years, 
I advanced through the ranks, serving in many elected 
positions, including Council Delegate, Financial Secretary, 
and Executive Board Member of LU 1087. In 2009, I joined 
DC 9 staff as an Organizer for LU 1087 and DC 9. I became 
President of DC 9 in 2014, following the death of Billy 
Elfeld. In 2015, I was elected BM/ST.

We’ve built a great staff at DC 9. Everyone from the top 
down truly puts their hearts into representing our members. 
I couldn’t ask for a better team to have my back and the 
backs of all of our members.

How many members does your District Council 
represent?

DC 9 represents 11,000 members throughout New York 
State and provides health care benefits to over 21,000 
participants through our Health and Welfare Funds. 

What areas are covered under DC 9’s jurisdiction?

Our jurisdiction covers 28 counties throughout New York 
State spanning from Long Island and New York City through 
the Capital Region and to the Adirondacks. Additionally, we 
also cover the Island of Puerto Rico.

How many Local Unions does your District Council 
have and what trades do they represent?

DC 9 consists of 15 local unions comprised of wall coverers; 
drywall finishers; metal polishers; lead abatement workers; 
glaziers and architectural metal and glassworkers; paint 
makers; allied tradespersons; and several types of painters, 
including bridge and structural steel, civil service, decorative 
and sign painters.

What projects and campaigns are you most 
proud of?

• In 2021, we completed long-awaited improvements to 
our NYC training facility. We brought the entire facility up 
to code, creating a second floor that added over 5,500 
square feet of additional training space. We also created 
several dedicated training spaces for all trades, including 
mock-up hotel rooms and office spaces, a new glass 
curtain wall and handrail glass, interior glass partition 
mock-ups, new welding booths, a commercial paint spray 
room, and an explosion-proof metal polishing room. 

• This year, DC 9 and NYC Health + Hospitals announced 
a new, four-year painting apprenticeship program. DC 
9, along with our Civil Service Workers Local Union 
1969, partnered with NYC Health +  Hospitals to 
provide classroom training while the apprentices receive 
supervised on-the-job training. The program will develop 
a pipeline of candidates with the skills and experience 
to pass a civil service exam and qualify for unionized 
painter positions within the city’s hospital system. We 
are currently working with other NYC departments to 
establish similar programs.

DC 9 BM/ST Joseph Azzopardi
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• DC 9 took the lead on construction safety legislation for 
NYC, resulting in the enactment of Local Law 196, requiring 
that construction and demolition workers on job sites with 
a Construction Superintendent, Site Safety Coordinator, or 
Site Safety Manager have a total of 40 hours of training. 
The implementation of this law has increased workers’ 
rights and improved the safety of construction sites for the 
entire industry across New York City.

• In recent years, we’ve raised awareness about the amount 
of lead paint chips falling into our communities. As a 
result of our efforts, the Metropolitan Transit Authority 
(MTA) put a rehabilitation program in motion for the 7 
Train elevated line in NYC, and the NYC Department of 
Transportation prioritized a project to address a similar 
issue on the elevated roadways and bridges that span 
FDR Drive on the East Side of Manhattan. Both projects 
created years of work for many of our industrial painting 
contractors and members. 

• We are incredibly proud of the work our members have 
done on these historic and notable sites throughout 
New York: 

What are some large projects and campaigns that 
DC 9 members are currently working on? 

• We have an interior glazing initiative in place to expand 
our reach in that market. We’ve seen significant growth 
in that area and are always looking for new opportunities 
to find work for our signatory contractors and members.

• On the industrial end, we have an ongoing tank initiative. 
Our industrial representatives and organizers work 
to ensure we are aware of tank bids before they are 
released by attending walk-throughs and bid meetings. 
They are continually building strategic partnerships with 
cities, towns, municipalities, and agencies that own or 
utilize these assets. 

DC 9 apprentices at their new state-of-the-art training facility.

-  Brooklyn Bridge -  Museum of Modern Art

-  George Washington Bridge (MoMA)

-  Governor Mario M. Cuomo Bridge -  One Vanderbilt

(formerly Tappan Zee Bridge) (a “supertall” skyscraper)

-  Guggenheim Museum -  Shubert Theatre

-  John F. Kennedy Airport -  St. Patrick’s Cathedral

-  LaGuardia Airport -  U.S. Olympic Center

-  Legoland Theme Park -  Vassar Brothers Medical Center

-  Lincoln Center -  Waldorf Astoria

-  (New) Madison Square Garden -  World Trade Center
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• We are working to have Coating Application Specialist 
(CAS) language and apprenticeship language specified 
in bid documents. As indicated earlier in the article, we 
take action to notify the public of the risks associated 
with certain work practices. 

• Since our recent expansion to Puerto Rico, we’ve 
worked to establish our presence there. We have been 
able to bring together industrial contractors, engineers, 
architects, government, labor, and corrosion experts to 
emphasize the importance of maintaining infrastructure 

on the island according to leading standards and with a 
properly trained workforce.

• We are present at Community and Planning Board 
hearings, build relationships with the board members, 
recruit from the community, perform volunteer work, and 
plan charity events with community partners in strategic 
areas where we see opportunities. DC 9 members and 
families also participate in many of these efforts, which 
often catch the attention of developers and politicians.

Shubert TheatreBrooklyn Bridge, Freedom Tower

Legoland Theme Park

Lincoln Center Governor Mario M. Cuomo BridgeLincoln Center
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Will you explain how DC 9’s political endorsements 
work? 

Our political endorsements are very member-driven. We 
engage our members and the public each election cycle 
by helping get out the vote. We inform and educate on 
voting rules, deadlines, and election dates. We educate 
our members about what our elected officials are doing to 
boost union construction and to help our members feed 
their families. We vet candidates and bring them to a local 
Political Action Committee meeting where our members ask 
tough questions and hold them accountable. We then vote 
together on endorsements, and our members volunteer on 
the campaigns of endorsed candidates.

What advice would you give to future leaders?

• Always listen and learn. 

• Study the CBA, Bylaws, and Constitution.

• Remember that we work for our members. 

• Stay humble.

DC 9 members at various volunteer events.

DC 9 members at a GOTV effort.

J O U R N A L   |   S U M M E R  2 0 2 2   |   3 9



INFRASTRUCTURE
DC 11 Protects the Vital Infrastructure Across Southern New England

District Council 11’s bridge and industrial painters work to 
protect vital bridges, overpasses, and water infrastructure 
across southern New England. 

DC 11 is partnering with Orsted, an offshore wind developer, as 
it prepares to place the second offshore wind farm off the coast 
of Rhode Island. DC 11 industrial painters will perform coatings 
work on wind turbine assemblies in the Port of Providence. 

DC 11 industrial painters employed by the Rhode Island 
Turnpike and Bridge Authority (RITBA) perform proactive, 
preventative maintenance on the properties maintained by 
the Authority, including the Newport Pell Bridge, Jamestown 
Bridge, and the Sakonnet River Bridge. 

The membership of DC 11 has just approved a great new four-
year bridge contract with well-deserved wage and benefit 
increases as they complete this critical work. 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 11 | CONNECTICUT, MASSACHUSETTS, RHODE ISLAND

DC 11 industrial painters employed by the Rhode 
Island Turnpike and Bridge Authority (RITBA).

Front, L to R: Althea Dibase and Rob Hill; Back, L to 
R: Richard Bentley, Robert Cramer, Antion Pitters 
House, Kelvin Mendez, Kevin Carvahlo, Karsumo 

Johnson, Justin Hopkins, and Pericles Soares. 

L to R: Junior Rodriguez, Antonio Garcia, Chris 
Piadade, and Pericles Soares.

Block Island Offshore Wind Farm (Rhode Island)

DC 11 industrial painters working on America’s first 
offshore wind farm off of Block Island. L to R: Bill Perry, 
Maximo Decaba, Ron Vidou, and Kristopher Marquez.
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DC 57’s Industrial Painters Repair the 
Roberto Clemente Bridge

Known as the “City of Bridges,” Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, 
boasts 446 bridges—more than any other city in the world. 
With nearly 30 of the city’s bridges in desperate need of repair, 
District Council 57 is gearing up to help transform the city into 
a safer, more sustainable place to live and travel by training a 
new cohort of industrial bridge painters in the latest corrosion 
protection technology.

Safely and effectively restoring mile-long bridges requires 
skill, an eye for detail, and nerves of steel. From applying 
industrial coatings to operating complex power tools and 
heavy equipment, DC 57 painters—like those at work on a 
recent repair project at the Roberto Clemente Bridge—take 
pride in their work. 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 57 | WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA
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  ROBUST INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS
SHOULD BE ROUTINE, NOT RARE.

231,000 BRIDGES
COUNTRY-WIDE NEED REPAIR

& PRESERVATION WORK

42% OF BRIDGES
ARE AT LEAST

50 YEARS OLD 

50,000 BRIDGES
ARE CONSIDERED

STRUCTURALLY DEFICIENT

178 MILLION TRIPS
ARE TAKEN ACROSS

STRUCTURALLY DEFICIENT
BRIDGES EVERY DAY

DC 88 Members Work on School 
Construction Project

Earlier this year, District Council 88/Local Union 1778 (Houston, 
Texas) glazier members, General Secretary-Treasurer Gregg Smith, 
and representatives from union contractor Spring Glass were given a 
tour of Fort Bend Independent School District (ISD) High School #12 in 
Rosharon, Texas. 

High-road contractors and high standards in school construction are 
key to a thriving community. They combat worker misclassification and 
wage theft and help maintain a safe and fair job site for workers.

DC 88 looks forward to their continued work at the school and is 
hoping to create a school-to-construction pipeline with top-notch 
contractors like Spring Glass and ISD Trustees. The new school is 
projected to open in fall 2023. 

Thank you to Fort Bend ISD Trustee Judy Dae for conducting the tour. 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 88 | TEXAS, 
OKLAHOMA, NEW MEXICO

General Secretary-Treasurer 
Gregg Smith

4 2   |   S U M M E R  2 0 2 2   |   J O U R N A L 



General Secretary-Treasurer 
Gregg Smith

RECOGNITION
Lisa Macpherson

DC 50 Congratulates Apprenticeship Grads

Lisa Macpherson, a 20-year member from District Council 46/
Local Union 1795 (Hamilton, Ontario), was recently featured 
in an article sponsored by the Essex and Kent Construction 
and Building Trades Council. The article, “Making the grade 
in their trades,” was written by Rebecca Wright of Postmedia 
Content Works for International Women’s Day.

Sister Macpherson, a glazier site superintendent for CGI, 
discussed stigma in the construction industry in the article 
and with the Journal team: “My experience put me with 
great crews that wanted to teach and show me how to do 
my job correctly. Most females in construction will try to 
work as hard as they can and usually out work the rest of 
the crew to try and prove to everyone they are just as smart 
and strong as everyone else. I did this and still do so at times 
just to prove not only to myself but the crew that I can do 

it too and get on the tools to show them how it is done. 
What I’ve learned through my experience is there will always 
be obstacles and barriers but you cannot fight them all so 
you need to pick your battles, but this goes for everything 
in life.”

She went on to say, “If you enjoy what you’re doing or are 
interested in the construction field, then go for it!  Be ready 
to take the challenge on and work hard at it.  You may start 
as just an apprentice with little knowledge, but as you work 
hard and get with good crews, you will learn the different 
aspects of the job and realize there is all kinds of potential to 
move up and do more.”

Congratulations on all that you have achieved, Sister 
Macpherson! You are an inspiration to all.

District Council 50 applauds all of the 2022 spring 
apprenticeship graduates, including the first class of Maui 
painters. Through the hardship of overcoming the COVID-19 
lockdown, these members persevered and succeeded in 
completing their coursework and hands-on training, a task 
that takes about 640 class hours to complete. 

DC 50 would also like to extend a special congratulations 
to Kekoa Reiny-Aloy for his dedication and perseverance. 
He completed two semesters of credits through workbooks 
and the Learning Management Service (LMS) prior to a move 
from Maui to Oahu. However, when he arrived in Oahu, 
he was informed that he would need to begin as a first-
semester apprentice. Understandably, he was disappointed 
and upset, but set a personal goal to continue with the 
program. He transferred back to Maui during his last 
semester and took in-person classes with the help of Maui 
instructors Shane Awai and Dustin Costa. He graduated 
with a perfect attendance record. 

Congratulations to Kekoa and to all graduates! 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 46 | ONTARIO

DISTRICT COUNCIL 50 | HAWAII

Lisa Macpherson

DC 50 Oahu spring graduates. 
Standing, L to R: Jared A. Ibana 

(taper), Roen Mabini (taper), 
Christopher Carvalho (painter), 
Brandon Taoy (painter), Jarren 
Mendoza (painter), Kalos Sales 
(painter), and Jayson Gonsalves 
(taper). Kneeling, L to R: Elias 
Susa-Valasco (floor layer) and 

Rodante Acorda, Jr. (floor layer).

DC 50 Maui spring painting 
graduates. Standing, L to R: 

Kahiau Kaina, Juan Ibe, Brian 
Baybado, Jeremy Valaraso, and 

Eli Gomez. Kneeling, L to R: 
Brandon Barroga, Kekoa Reiny-

Aloy, and Marwyn Ligot.

DC 50 honored Kekoa Reiny-Aloy 
for his perfect attendance. L to 
R: DC 50 BM/ST Ryden “Bully” 

Valmoja, Maui Organizer/
Instructor Shane Awai, Interim 

Training Director Breanne 
Geronimo, Kekoa Reiny-Aloy, 

and DC 50 Director of Organizing 
Robin Schlitzkus. J O U R N A L   |   S U M M E R  2 0 2 2   |   4 3



REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In accordance with Section 23 of the Constitution of the 
International Union of Painters and Allied Trades, the Audit 
Committee convened on April 12, 2022 for the purpose of 
auditing the accounts of the International Union for the year 
ended December 31, 2021. The Committee members were duly 
appointed and consisted of Jessica Anders, District Council 7/
Local Union 579; Ana Hanson, District Council 36/Local Union 
1991; Harold Keller, District Council 53/Local Union 1144.

The General Executive Board engaged the services of the 
independent certified public accounting firm of Novak Francella 
LLC, to act in conjunction with the Audit Committee. The 
Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statements of 
the International Union for the year ended December 31, 2021, 
including the detail of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. 
The Committee concludes that the transactions undertaken by 
the International Union were in accordance with established 
policies and the Constitution.

The Committee had access to all of the International Union’s 
records including bank statements, investment custody reports, 
receipts and disbursements. The Committee noted that a strong 
internal control system was in place for safeguarding the assets 
of the International Union.

General Fund operating revenue exceeded expenses during 
2021. The total assets of the International Union were $100.7 
million at December 31, 2021. It was noted that this is the 
first time in the history of the International Union that assets 
exceeded $100 million. The savings that were planned from 
increased efficiencies and cost controls have continued to be 
realized. More importantly, services have been expanded. A 
total of $50.4 million was spent this year for the benefit and 
advancement of our members and affiliates.

During 2021, the Organizing Fund expended $8.6 million in a 
targeted manner to support areas where organizing efforts are 
most needed.

The International Union continued to waive per capita for trade 
show members for 2021.  The waived per capita is estimated to 
amount to over $1.6 million for 2021.

The Committee noted that the International Union purchased a 
townhouse in 2021 in order to house directors, executive board 
members, and other out-of-town guests when they are working 
in the headquarters building.  In addition, to the savings that 
the International Union will realize from reduced hotel fees, 
the townhouse should appreciate in value, creating a potential 
addition to reserves if it is sold in the future. It was also noted 
that improvements were made to the campus buildings in order 
to create a more enjoyable environment for students attending 
classes at the training center.

Operating Funds cash and investments at December 31, 2021, 
were $46.6 million. The Committee was informed that the IUPAT 
strives to maintain cash and investments reserves at 12 months, 
as recommended by our independent accountants. At the end of 
2021, the reserves were 12.3 months. 

Approved in 2021, and in accordance with Section 18(a) of 
the Constitution, the IUPAT began earning administrative 
dues at the rate of $0.05 for every hour worked in June 2020. 
Administrative dues earned in 2021, the first full calendar year 
in which administrative dues were earned, totaled $4.5 million. 
It was noted that the administrative dues rate will increase to 
$0.10 for every hour worked beginning in June 2022.

The financial condition of our International Union is sound. We 
noted that the General Executive Board has worked to minimize 
the operating costs and maximize the investment performance. 
These actions have provided, at the lowest cost to members, the 
financial strength and stability that is reflected in our net assets.

We have found the accounts to be maintained in a careful and 
systematic manner. The independent auditor has provided an 
unmodified opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We, the Members of the Audit Committee, are in agreement as 
to the International Union’s financial status for the year ended 
December 31, 2021.

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - April 13, 2022:

Jessica Anders | District Council 7/Local Union 579

Ana Hanson | District Council 36/Local Union 1991

Harold Keller | District Council 53/Local Union 1144

Working in conjunction with the Audit Committee:

NOVAK FRANCELLA LLC | Certified Public Accountants

By: Steven J. Mazur, CPA

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 12th day of April, 2022.

JANUARY 1, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 
INTERNATIONAL UNION OF PAINTERS AND ALLIED TRADES
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Members of the General Executive Board
International Union of Painters and Allied Trades

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of the International Union of Painters and Allied Trades (the 
International Union), which comprise the consolidated statement 
of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related 
consolidated statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the International Union of Painters and Allied Trades as of December 
31, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report.  We are required to be independent of the International Union 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management 
is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
International Union’s ability to continue as a going concern within 
one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are 
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there 
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the International Union’s internal control.  
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about the International Union’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole.  The Schedule of Building 
Fund Activity by Building on page 23 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not required part of the consolidated financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the 
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 

Bala Cynwyd, Pennsylvania
May 24, 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED IUPAT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

IUPAT PAT

Assets General Fund Organizing Fund Building Fund Total Operating 
Funds

Convention 
Fund

Disaster  
Relief Fund

Death 
Benefit Fund

Accidental Death 
Fund

Issues 
Campaigns

Without Donor 
Restriction

Without Donor 
Restriction

With Donor 
Restriction

Total

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,227,383  $ 1,423,080  $ 852,411  $ 8,502,874  $ 113,382  $ 929,536  $ 997,626  $ 492,480  $ 248,022  $ 11,283,920  $ 388,416  $ 4,230,728  $ 15,903,064 

Accrued interest receivable   112,957   13,686   21,906   148,549   9,586   -     40,526   -     -     198,661   -     -     198,661 

Per capita receivable   4,720,287   -     -     4,720,287   -     -     -     -     -     4,720,287   -     -     4,720,287 

International admin dues 
receivable

  1,802,362   -     -     1,802,362   -     -     -     -     -     1,802,362   -     -     1,802,362 

Due from related funds   352,454   -     153,038   505,492   -     210   -     -     -     505,702   34,638   -     540,340 

Due from U.S. Government   1,316,775   -     -     1,316,775   -     -     -     -     -     1,316,775   -     -     1,316,775 

Other receivable   192,477   -     1,470   193,947   -     125   -     -     -     194,072   -     162,473   356,545 

Intrafunds receivable (payable)   (1,511,692)   1,025,348   (10,840,548)   (11,326,892)   242,212   4,450   11,071,957   8,273   -     -     -     -     -   

Prepaid expenses   453,081   -     -     453,081   18,791   -     -     -     -     471,872   -     -     471,872 

Loan to affiliate   1,192,830   -     -     1,192,830   -     -     -     -     -     1,192,830   -     -     1,192,830 

Investments   30,266,310   2,946,949   4,877,003   38,090,262   2,992,380   -     18,684,429   -     -     59,767,071   -     -     59,767,071 

Property and equipment, net   420,812   -     13,972,394   14,393,206   -     -     -     -     -     14,393,206   -     -     14,393,206 

 Total assets  $ 45,546,036  $ 5,409,063  $ 9,037,674  $ 59,992,773  $ 3,376,351  $ 934,321  $ 30,794,538  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 95,846,758  $ 423,054  $ 4,393,201  $ 100,663,013 

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses

 $ 1,588,796  $ 138,401  $ 138,685  $ 1,865,882  $ 1,126  $ -    $ 74,798  -    -  $ 1,941,806  $ 20  -  $ 1,941,826 

Accrued postretirement benefit   1,718,440   -     -     1,718,440  -     -    -    -    -     1,718,440   -    -     1,718,440 

Due to related funds   122,455   -     -     122,455  -     -    -    -    -     122,455   7,577  -     130,032 

Total liabilities   3,429,691   138,401   138,685   3,706,777   1,126   -     74,798  -   -   3,782,701   7,597  -   3,790,298 

Net assets

Without donor restrictions   42,116,345   5,270,662   8,898,989   56,285,996   3,375,225   934,321   30,719,740   500,753   248,022   92,064,057   415,457  -     92,479,514 

With donor restrictions   -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     4,393,201   4,393,201 

Total net assets   42,116,345   5,270,662   8,898,989   56,285,996   3,375,225   934,321   30,719,740   500,753   248,022   92,064,057   415,457   4,393,201   96,872,715 

 Total liabilities and net assets  $ 45,546,036  $ 5,409,063  $ 9,037,674  $ 59,992,773  $ 3,376,351  $ 934,321   $ 30,794,538  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 95,846,758  $ 423,054  $ 4,393,201  $ 100,663,013 
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IUPAT PAT

Assets General Fund Organizing Fund Building Fund Total Operating 
Funds

Convention 
Fund

Disaster  
Relief Fund

Death 
Benefit Fund

Accidental Death 
Fund

Issues 
Campaigns

Without Donor 
Restriction

Without Donor 
Restriction

With Donor 
Restriction

Total

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,227,383  $ 1,423,080  $ 852,411  $ 8,502,874  $ 113,382  $ 929,536  $ 997,626  $ 492,480  $ 248,022  $ 11,283,920  $ 388,416  $ 4,230,728  $ 15,903,064 

Accrued interest receivable   112,957   13,686   21,906   148,549   9,586   -     40,526   -     -     198,661   -     -     198,661 

Per capita receivable   4,720,287   -     -     4,720,287   -     -     -     -     -     4,720,287   -     -     4,720,287 

International admin dues 
receivable

  1,802,362   -     -     1,802,362   -     -     -     -     -     1,802,362   -     -     1,802,362 

Due from related funds   352,454   -     153,038   505,492   -     210   -     -     -     505,702   34,638   -     540,340 

Due from U.S. Government   1,316,775   -     -     1,316,775   -     -     -     -     -     1,316,775   -     -     1,316,775 

Other receivable   192,477   -     1,470   193,947   -     125   -     -     -     194,072   -     162,473   356,545 

Intrafunds receivable (payable)   (1,511,692)   1,025,348   (10,840,548)   (11,326,892)   242,212   4,450   11,071,957   8,273   -     -     -     -     -   

Prepaid expenses   453,081   -     -     453,081   18,791   -     -     -     -     471,872   -     -     471,872 

Loan to affiliate   1,192,830   -     -     1,192,830   -     -     -     -     -     1,192,830   -     -     1,192,830 

Investments   30,266,310   2,946,949   4,877,003   38,090,262   2,992,380   -     18,684,429   -     -     59,767,071   -     -     59,767,071 

Property and equipment, net   420,812   -     13,972,394   14,393,206   -     -     -     -     -     14,393,206   -     -     14,393,206 

 Total assets  $ 45,546,036  $ 5,409,063  $ 9,037,674  $ 59,992,773  $ 3,376,351  $ 934,321  $ 30,794,538  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 95,846,758  $ 423,054  $ 4,393,201  $ 100,663,013 

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses

 $ 1,588,796  $ 138,401  $ 138,685  $ 1,865,882  $ 1,126  $ -    $ 74,798  -    -  $ 1,941,806  $ 20  -  $ 1,941,826 

Accrued postretirement benefit   1,718,440   -     -     1,718,440  -     -    -    -    -     1,718,440   -    -     1,718,440 

Due to related funds   122,455   -     -     122,455  -     -    -    -    -     122,455   7,577  -     130,032 

Total liabilities   3,429,691   138,401   138,685   3,706,777   1,126   -     74,798  -   -   3,782,701   7,597  -   3,790,298 

Net assets

Without donor restrictions   42,116,345   5,270,662   8,898,989   56,285,996   3,375,225   934,321   30,719,740   500,753   248,022   92,064,057   415,457  -     92,479,514 

With donor restrictions   -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     4,393,201   4,393,201 

Total net assets   42,116,345   5,270,662   8,898,989   56,285,996   3,375,225   934,321   30,719,740   500,753   248,022   92,064,057   415,457   4,393,201   96,872,715 

 Total liabilities and net assets  $ 45,546,036  $ 5,409,063  $ 9,037,674  $ 59,992,773  $ 3,376,351  $ 934,321   $ 30,794,538  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 95,846,758  $ 423,054  $ 4,393,201  $ 100,663,013 
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IUPAT PAT

General Fund Organizing 
Fund

Building 
Fund

Elimination Total Operating 
Funds

Convention 
Fund

Disaster 
Relief Fund

Death 
Benefit Fund

Accidental 
Death Fund

Issues Campaigns Without Donor 
Restriction

Without Donor 
Restriction

With Donor 
Restriction

Elimination Total

Revenue
 Per capita  $ 19,100,992  $ 8,668,311 $ -   $ -    $ 27,769,303  $ 1,414,843 $ -   $ - $ -   $ -    $ 29,184,146  $ 1,526,211 $ -   $ -    $ 30,710,357 

 International admin dues   4,472,751   -    -    -     4,472,751   -    -    -  -    -     4,472,751  -    -    -     4,472,751 

 Administrative processing, reinstatement and 
clearance card fees

  447,763  -     -     -     447,763   25,161   -     -     -    -     472,924   -     -     -     472,924 

 Benefit contributions   -    -     -     -     -     -     -     933,047   49,526  -     982,573   -     -     -     982,573 

 Individual contributions   -    -     -     -     -     -     110,921   -     -    -     110,921   -     2,755,854   -     2,866,775 

 Contributions and donations   -    -     -     -     -     -     1,300   -     -   -   1,300   -     -     -     1,300 

 Investment income - net of fees   17,426   (7,569)   (18,695)   4,183   (4,655)   (11,781)   -     4,176,682   -    -     4,160,246   (149)   2,140   8,158   4,170,395 

 Office rent   -     -     1,939,783   (49,086)   1,890,697   -     -     -     -    -     1,890,697   -     -     -     1,890,697 

 Administrative cost reimbursements   4,630,902   -     98,650   (2,824,176)   1,905,376   -     -     -     -    -     1,905,376   -     -     (21,217)   1,884,159 

 Royalties and reimbursements   139,281   -     -     -     139,281   -     -     -     -    -     139,281   -     -     -     139,281 

 Local union supplies and bond premiums   6,918   -     -     (100)   6,818   -     -     -     -    -     6,818   -     -     -     6,818 

 Job Corps program   8,289,905   -     -     -     8,289,905   -     -     -     -    -     8,289,905   -     -     -     8,289,905 

 Meals and lodging revenue (Residence Hall)   -     -     441,363   -     441,363   -     -    -     -    -     441,363   -     -     -     441,363 

 Other   2,227,206   109,507   104,646   (235,318)   2,206,041   -     -     20,069   -     -     2,226,110   -     -     -     2,226,110 

Total   39,333,144   8,770,249   2,565,747   (3,104,497)   47,564,643   1,428,223   112,221   5,129,798   49,526   -     54,284,411   1,526,062   2,757,994   (13,059)   58,555,408 

 Net assets released from restriction  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     1,484,687   (1,484,687)  -    -   

 Total revenue   39,333,144   8,770,249   2,565,747   (3,104,497)   47,564,643   1,428,223   112,221   5,129,798   49,526   -     54,284,411   3,010,749   1,273,307   (13,059)   58,555,408 

Expenses
 Personnel costs   18,916,781   2,529,506   696,167   (2,580,086)   19,562,368   -     -     -     -     -     19,562,368   -    -     -     19,562,368 

 Affiliation fees   2,230,970   -     -     -     2,230,970   -     -     -     -     -     2,230,970   -    -     -     2,230,970 

 Benefits and awards   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,003,898   -     -     2,003,898   -    -     -     2,003,898 

 Assistance to affiliates   -     5,279,383   -     -     5,279,383   -     -     -     -     -     5,279,383   -    -     -     5,279,383 

 Communications (including IUPAT Journal)   397,233   -     -     -     397,233   -     -     -     -     -     397,233   55,730  -     -     452,963 

 Conferences, committees and seminars   1,984,720   -     -     (187,437)   1,797,283   -     -     -     -     -     1,797,283   28  -     (28)   1,797,283 

 Convention   -     -     -     -     -     38,213   -     -     -     -     38,213   -    -     -     38,213 

 Government affairs contributions   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,691,448  -     -     2,691,448 

 Member mobilization   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     5,000   5,000   13,747  -     -     18,747 

 Financial assistance to affiliates   12,681   -     -     12,681   -     -     -     -     -     12,681   -    -     -     12,681 

 Regional organizing efforts   -     477,207   -     (5,599)   471,608   -     -     -     -     -     471,608   -    -     -     471,608 

 Legal and litigation   359,742   93,176   1,224   -     454,142   -     -     -     -     -     454,142   10,000  -     -     464,142 

 Auditing fees & Other professional fees   1,085,377   168,950   138,688   (132,428)   1,260,587   -     -     30,050   -     -     1,290,637   92,695  -     (4,819)   1,378,513 

 Charitable contributions   150,369   -     -     -     150,369   -     129,000   -     -     -     279,369   -    -     -     279,369 

 Political contributions   621,338   -     -     -     621,338   -     -     -     -     -     621,338   -    -     -     621,338 

 Local union supplies and bond premiums   65,527   -     -     -     65,527   -     -     -     -     -     65,527   -    -     -     65,527 

 Job Corps program and administration   8,127,181   -     -     (181,768)   7,945,413   -     -     -     -     -     7,945,413   -    -     -     7,945,413 

 Meals and lodging expenses   -     -     184,816   -     184,816   -     -     -     -     -     184,816   -    -     -     184,816 

 Administrative, office and general office and 
computer equipment and software enhancements

  807,928   1,454   358,798   (6,891)   1,161,289   -     -     -     -     -     1,161,289   244  -     (244)   1,161,289 

Occupancy   69,801   -     1,089,870   -     1,159,671   -     -     -     -     -     1,159,671   7,968  -     (7,968)   1,159,671 

Postage, printing and supplies   301,047   3,195   101,948   (3,216)   402,974   -     -     -     -     -     402,974   -    -     -     402,974 

Insurance   284,878   -     250   -     285,128   -     -     -     -     -     285,128   -    -     -     285,128 

Depreciation and amortization   -     -     1,669,210   -     1,669,210   -     -     -     -     -     1,669,210   -    -     -     1,669,210 

Currency translation   (13,310)   29,018   -     -     15,708   310   -     470   368   -     16,856   -    -     -     16,856 

Other   256,171   -     27,103   (7,072)   276,202   -     70   1,796   -     -     278,068   1,036  -     -     279,104 

 Total expenses   35,658,434   8,581,889   4,268,074   (3,104,497)   45,403,900   38,523   129,070   2,036,214   368  5,000   47,613,075   2,872,896  -    (13,059)   50,472,912 

Change in net assets   3,674,710   188,360   (1,702,327)  -     2,160,743   1,389,700   (16,849)   3,093,584   49,158  (5,000)   6,671,336   137,853   1,273,307  -     8,082,496 

Net assets at beginning of year   38,441,635   5,082,302   10,601,316  -     54,125,253   1,985,525   951,170   27,626,156   451,595   253,022   85,392,721   277,604   3,119,894  -     88,790,219 

Net assets at end of year  $ 42,116,345  $ 5,270,662  $ 8,898,989 $ -    $ 56,285,996  $ 3,375,225  $ 934,321  $ 30,719,740  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 92,064,057  $ 415,457  $ 4,393,201 $ -    $ 96,872,715 

CONSOLIDATED IUPAT STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES      
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
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IUPAT PAT

General Fund Organizing 
Fund

Building 
Fund

Elimination Total Operating 
Funds

Convention 
Fund

Disaster 
Relief Fund

Death 
Benefit Fund

Accidental 
Death Fund

Issues Campaigns Without Donor 
Restriction

Without Donor 
Restriction

With Donor 
Restriction

Elimination Total

Revenue
 Per capita  $ 19,100,992  $ 8,668,311 $ -   $ -    $ 27,769,303  $ 1,414,843 $ -   $ - $ -   $ -    $ 29,184,146  $ 1,526,211 $ -   $ -    $ 30,710,357 

 International admin dues   4,472,751   -    -    -     4,472,751   -    -    -  -    -     4,472,751  -    -    -     4,472,751 

 Administrative processing, reinstatement and 
clearance card fees

  447,763  -     -     -     447,763   25,161   -     -     -    -     472,924   -     -     -     472,924 

 Benefit contributions   -    -     -     -     -     -     -     933,047   49,526  -     982,573   -     -     -     982,573 

 Individual contributions   -    -     -     -     -     -     110,921   -     -    -     110,921   -     2,755,854   -     2,866,775 

 Contributions and donations   -    -     -     -     -     -     1,300   -     -   -   1,300   -     -     -     1,300 

 Investment income - net of fees   17,426   (7,569)   (18,695)   4,183   (4,655)   (11,781)   -     4,176,682   -    -     4,160,246   (149)   2,140   8,158   4,170,395 

 Office rent   -     -     1,939,783   (49,086)   1,890,697   -     -     -     -    -     1,890,697   -     -     -     1,890,697 

 Administrative cost reimbursements   4,630,902   -     98,650   (2,824,176)   1,905,376   -     -     -     -    -     1,905,376   -     -     (21,217)   1,884,159 

 Royalties and reimbursements   139,281   -     -     -     139,281   -     -     -     -    -     139,281   -     -     -     139,281 

 Local union supplies and bond premiums   6,918   -     -     (100)   6,818   -     -     -     -    -     6,818   -     -     -     6,818 

 Job Corps program   8,289,905   -     -     -     8,289,905   -     -     -     -    -     8,289,905   -     -     -     8,289,905 

 Meals and lodging revenue (Residence Hall)   -     -     441,363   -     441,363   -     -    -     -    -     441,363   -     -     -     441,363 

 Other   2,227,206   109,507   104,646   (235,318)   2,206,041   -     -     20,069   -     -     2,226,110   -     -     -     2,226,110 

Total   39,333,144   8,770,249   2,565,747   (3,104,497)   47,564,643   1,428,223   112,221   5,129,798   49,526   -     54,284,411   1,526,062   2,757,994   (13,059)   58,555,408 

 Net assets released from restriction  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     1,484,687   (1,484,687)  -    -   

 Total revenue   39,333,144   8,770,249   2,565,747   (3,104,497)   47,564,643   1,428,223   112,221   5,129,798   49,526   -     54,284,411   3,010,749   1,273,307   (13,059)   58,555,408 

Expenses
 Personnel costs   18,916,781   2,529,506   696,167   (2,580,086)   19,562,368   -     -     -     -     -     19,562,368   -    -     -     19,562,368 

 Affiliation fees   2,230,970   -     -     -     2,230,970   -     -     -     -     -     2,230,970   -    -     -     2,230,970 

 Benefits and awards   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,003,898   -     -     2,003,898   -    -     -     2,003,898 

 Assistance to affiliates   -     5,279,383   -     -     5,279,383   -     -     -     -     -     5,279,383   -    -     -     5,279,383 

 Communications (including IUPAT Journal)   397,233   -     -     -     397,233   -     -     -     -     -     397,233   55,730  -     -     452,963 

 Conferences, committees and seminars   1,984,720   -     -     (187,437)   1,797,283   -     -     -     -     -     1,797,283   28  -     (28)   1,797,283 

 Convention   -     -     -     -     -     38,213   -     -     -     -     38,213   -    -     -     38,213 

 Government affairs contributions   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,691,448  -     -     2,691,448 

 Member mobilization   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     5,000   5,000   13,747  -     -     18,747 

 Financial assistance to affiliates   12,681   -     -     12,681   -     -     -     -     -     12,681   -    -     -     12,681 

 Regional organizing efforts   -     477,207   -     (5,599)   471,608   -     -     -     -     -     471,608   -    -     -     471,608 

 Legal and litigation   359,742   93,176   1,224   -     454,142   -     -     -     -     -     454,142   10,000  -     -     464,142 

 Auditing fees & Other professional fees   1,085,377   168,950   138,688   (132,428)   1,260,587   -     -     30,050   -     -     1,290,637   92,695  -     (4,819)   1,378,513 

 Charitable contributions   150,369   -     -     -     150,369   -     129,000   -     -     -     279,369   -    -     -     279,369 

 Political contributions   621,338   -     -     -     621,338   -     -     -     -     -     621,338   -    -     -     621,338 

 Local union supplies and bond premiums   65,527   -     -     -     65,527   -     -     -     -     -     65,527   -    -     -     65,527 

 Job Corps program and administration   8,127,181   -     -     (181,768)   7,945,413   -     -     -     -     -     7,945,413   -    -     -     7,945,413 

 Meals and lodging expenses   -     -     184,816   -     184,816   -     -     -     -     -     184,816   -    -     -     184,816 

 Administrative, office and general office and 
computer equipment and software enhancements

  807,928   1,454   358,798   (6,891)   1,161,289   -     -     -     -     -     1,161,289   244  -     (244)   1,161,289 

Occupancy   69,801   -     1,089,870   -     1,159,671   -     -     -     -     -     1,159,671   7,968  -     (7,968)   1,159,671 

Postage, printing and supplies   301,047   3,195   101,948   (3,216)   402,974   -     -     -     -     -     402,974   -    -     -     402,974 

Insurance   284,878   -     250   -     285,128   -     -     -     -     -     285,128   -    -     -     285,128 

Depreciation and amortization   -     -     1,669,210   -     1,669,210   -     -     -     -     -     1,669,210   -    -     -     1,669,210 

Currency translation   (13,310)   29,018   -     -     15,708   310   -     470   368   -     16,856   -    -     -     16,856 

Other   256,171   -     27,103   (7,072)   276,202   -     70   1,796   -     -     278,068   1,036  -     -     279,104 

 Total expenses   35,658,434   8,581,889   4,268,074   (3,104,497)   45,403,900   38,523   129,070   2,036,214   368  5,000   47,613,075   2,872,896  -    (13,059)   50,472,912 

Change in net assets   3,674,710   188,360   (1,702,327)  -     2,160,743   1,389,700   (16,849)   3,093,584   49,158  (5,000)   6,671,336   137,853   1,273,307  -     8,082,496 

Net assets at beginning of year   38,441,635   5,082,302   10,601,316  -     54,125,253   1,985,525   951,170   27,626,156   451,595   253,022   85,392,721   277,604   3,119,894  -     88,790,219 

Net assets at end of year  $ 42,116,345  $ 5,270,662  $ 8,898,989 $ -    $ 56,285,996  $ 3,375,225  $ 934,321  $ 30,719,740  $ 500,753  $ 248,022  $ 92,064,057  $ 415,457  $ 4,393,201 $ -    $ 96,872,715 
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CONSOLIDATED IUPAT STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS      
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021      

IUPAT PAT Total
Cash flows provided by operating activities
 Cash received from

District councils, local unions and members  $ 35,952,000  $ 4,359,772  $ 40,311,772 
Investment income   1,859,216   2,196   1,861,412 

Other revenue and reimbursements   17,239,003   30,452   17,269,455 

Cash received   55,050,219   4,392,420   59,442,639 

 Cash disbursed
For personnel costs   (19,562,368)   -     (19,562,368)

To service providers, suppliers, vendors and others   (29,589,535)   (2,900,593)   (32,490,128)

Cash used   (49,151,903)   (2,900,593)   (52,052,496)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   5,898,316   1,491,827   7,390,143 

Cash flows provided by investing activities

Proceeds from sale or redemption of investments   44,239,148  -     44,239,148 

Purchase of investments   (45,587,358)  -     (45,587,358)

Purchase of fixed assets   (885,188)  -     (885,188)

Principal collected on loan   65,287  -     65,287 

Net cash provided by investing activities   (2,168,111)  -     (2,168,111)

Net increase in cash   3,730,205   1,491,827   5,222,032 
Cash and cash equivalents  

Beginning of year   7,553,715   3,127,317   10,681,032 

End of year  $ 11,283,920  $ 4,619,144  $ 15,903,064 
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NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The International Union of Painters and Allied Trades (the 
International Union) is a labor organization representing 
painters and workers in allied trades throughout the United 
States and Canada.  The primary source of revenue is per capita 
paid by Local Unions and District Councils.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

Method of Accounting - The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  Membership dues are accounted 
for as exchange transactions.  Net assets are classified as net 
assets without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions.  
Net assets are generally reported as net assets without donor 
restrictions unless assets are received from donors with explicit 
stipulations that limit the use of the asset.  The Bold Futures and 
PAT LEC represent net assets without donor restrictions.  The 
PAT PC represents net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets 
that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may 
be expended for any purpose in performing the primary 
objectives of the organization.  These net assets may be used 
at the discretion of International Union’s management and 
the General Executive Board.

Board-designated net assets: Net assets that are not 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions but are subject to 
self-imposed limits by the action of the General Executive 
Board.  These net assets may be used at the discretion of the 
International Union’s General Executive Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to 
stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors.  Some donor 
restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be 
met by actions of the International or by the passage of time.  
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the 
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.  
Donor restricted net assets are “released from restrictions” 
when the amounts are expended for the purpose specified.

Consolidation and Fund Accounting - The consolidated 
financial statements include the accounts and activities of the 
International Union and related entities under the International 
Union’s control.  For purposes of presentation in the consolidated 
financial statements and in accordance with requirements set 
forth in its Constitution, the International Union reports its 
accounts and activities as follows:

Functional Allocation of Expenses - The consolidated 
statement of activities presents expenses by function and 
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific 
functional area of the International Union are reported as 
expenses of those functional areas.

Program Services

IUPAT - The funds of the IUPAT are the General, Building, 
Convention, Accidental Death, Disaster Relief, Death Benefit, 
Organizing and Issues Campaign.  International administrative 
dues revenue is collected per member per hour and can vary 
depending on what industry in which the member works.  These 
dues can range anywhere up to $0.05 per member per hour.  Per 
capita revenue is based on monthly billings to District Councils 
and Local Unions for membership activity reported through 
December each year.  The allocation of per capita among the funds 
is in accordance with the International Union’s Constitution.

General Fund - Provides for the ongoing activities of the 
International Union not specifically carried out by any other 
fund.  The General Fund also includes the activity of the Job 
Corps program which is a party to a U.S. Government agency 
contract as discussed in Note 5.  The Job Corps program will 
submit expenses for reimbursement by a U.S. Government 
agency, so this is considered an exchange transaction and 
this revenue is recognized when expenses are submitted for 
reimbursement.

Organizing Fund - This Fund was established to defray 
the costs of enhanced organizing activities.  Funding sources 
include administrative processing fees and an allocation of 
per capita tax in the amount of $8.70 per member, per month.

Building Fund - The IUPAT Building Corp., LLC was formed 
on December 14, 2004, to acquire and hold title to the 
property to be used for the national headquarters complex.  
Currently, no per capita is allocated to the Building Fund.

Convention Fund - This Fund accumulates allocated 
assessments received from affiliates to defray the costs of the 
convention held every five years.  Currently, an allocation of 
per capita tax in the amount of 5% of total per capita is 
allocated to the Convention Fund.

Disaster Relief Fund - This Fund was established to provide 
assistance to areas affected by natural disaster.  Funding 
sources include contributions from the General Fund, Local 
Unions, District Councils, members, and others.

Death Benefit Fund - Provides a death benefit for eligible 
members.  The benefits paid vary in amount depending upon 
the classification of the member.  Most payments are for the 
normal death benefit which is $3,000.  This benefit is funded 
by allocating $1.00 per member, per month.

Accidental Death Fund - Provides accidental death 
benefits for all members in good standing.  The benefit 
for eligible members is $10,000.  This benefit is funded by 
allocating $.05 per member, per month, to this Fund.

Issues Campaign - An account to build coalitions and 
promote legislation around immigration and other human 
rights.  The Issues Campaign account is funded from the 
IUPAT General Fund and contributions from other unions and 
allied groups.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued)

PAT - The International Union has established three separate 
segregated entities for political, legislative and educational 
purposes. 

PAT PC - The Political Action Together - Political Committee 
Fund (PAT-PC) directly receives voluntary contributions, 
including payroll check-offs, from members of the International 
Union.  These contributions are considered unconditional 
contributions and are recognized when received.  

PAT LEC - The Political Action Together - Legislative and 
Educational Fund (PAT-LEC) is financed through an allocation 
of per capita tax in the amount of $0.40 per member, per 
month, and payments from Local Union and District Councils.

Bold Futures - The Bold Futures Political Action Committee 
(Bold Futures PAC) was established to secure the nomination, 
election and appointment of IUPAT members to public office.  
The Bold Futures PAC is financed by contributions or donations 
given to it by IUPAT, its affiliates, political committees affiliated 
with them and members.  These contributions are considered 
unconditional contributions and are recognized when received.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of amounts held in demand deposit and money market accounts.

Investments and Investment Income Recognition - 
Securities are reported at their aggregate fair value.  The fair value of 
investments in U.S. Government and Government Agency securities, 
corporate bonds, common stock and preferred stock are determined 
by quoted market prices.  The certificates of deposit are carried at 
estimated fair value as determined by the investment custodian. 
The short-term investments, ULLICO stock and UnionPlus Stock are 
carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-
date basis.  Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis.  
Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.  Net appreciation 
on sales includes the International Union’s gains and losses on 
investments bought and sold as well as held during the year and 
are recorded in investment income on the statement of activities.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are carried 
at cost.  Major additions in excess of $10,000 are capitalized, 
while replacements and repairs that do not improve or extend 
the lives of the respective assets are expensed.  Depreciation 
expense is computed using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Depreciation expense totaled $1,669,486 for the year ended 
December 31, 2021.

Canadian Currency - The International Union maintains 
checking and savings accounts in Canada as well as the United 
States.  For financial statement purposes, all assets are expressed 
in U.S. dollar equivalents.

Canadian currencies included in the consolidated statement of 
financial position are translated at the exchange rates in effect 
on the last day of the year.  Unrealized increases and decreases 
due to fluctuations in exchange rates are included in the 
consolidated statement of activities.

Funds received and disbursed in Canada are stated in U.S. 
dollars based on the average exchange rate in effect during the 
year when reported in the revenue and expenses included in the 
consolidated statement of activities.  The average exchange rate 
for 2021 used to translate revenue and expenses was $0.78358 
per Canadian dollar.  At December 31, 2021, the exchange rate 
was $0.78241 per Canadian dollar.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements - The preparation of consolidated 
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.

Financial Presentation - The International Union’s consolidated 
financial statements present its net assets, revenues, expenses, 
gains, and losses, classified between unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, and permanently restricted, based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

NOTE 3. TAX STATUS

The International Union is exempt from Federal income taxes 
under Section 501(c)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The consolidated financial statements include the activity of the 
PAT-LEC, PAT PC and Bold Futures.  Section 527 of the Internal 
Revenue Code provides for the exemption from Federal income 
tax for “exempt function income” of a political committee that is 
a separate segregated fund of an exempt organization which is 
not a political organization.  Contributions received are exempt 
function income provided that the receipts are primarily expended 
for an exempt function or for some or all of its administrative 
expenses.  However, interest income will be taxed.  The PAT-
LEC, PAT-PC and Bold Futures file Internal Revenue Service Form 
1120-POL to report financial activities.  Income tax expense for 
2021 totaled $817.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America require management to evaluate tax positions taken 
by the International Union and recognize a tax liability if the 
International Union has taken an uncertain position that, more 
likely than not, would not be sustained upon examination by the 
U.S. Federal, state, or local taxing authorities.  The International 
Union is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; 
however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in 
progress.  Typically, tax years will remain open for three years; 
however, this may differ depending upon the circumstances of 
the International Union.

Building 20 years

Furniture and Equipment 5-20 years

Automobiles 5 years
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NOTE 6. INVESTMENTS 

The cost and fair value of investments held by the International Union at December 31, 2021, is summarized below:

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2021, consisted of the following:

NOTE 4. UNINSURED CASH BALANCES 

The International Union maintains its cash accounts primarily with banks located in Washington, D.C.  The total cash balances are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per bank.  The International Union has cash balances 
on deposit at December 31, 2021 with PNC Bank and Bank of Labor, that exceed the balance of FDIC insurance coverage by 
approximately $80,574 and $12,816,294, respectively.  

The International Union also maintains cash at a Canadian financial institution, which is insured up to $100,000 in Canadian dollars.  
As of December 31, 2021, the International Union’s cash in the Canadian financial institution in excess of insurance coverage totaled 
approximately $3,091,668 in Canadian dollars ($2,418,952 U.S. equivalent).

NOTE 5. U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY CONTRACT

The International Union is a party to a cost reimbursement contract with the U.S. Department of Labor Job Corps Program.

The 2021 activity and contract funds due from the U.S. Government at December 31, 2021, were as follows:

The base period of the 1630DC-18-C-0013 contract expires on February 28, 2023.

Due from U.S. 
Government at 

beginning of year

Contract 
Receipts Expenditures

Due from U.S. 
Government at 

end of year

U.S. Department of Labor 
Job Corps Program 

 $ 921,981  $ 7,895,111  $ 8,289,905  $ 1,316,775  1630DC-18-C-0013

 $ 921,981  $ 7,895,111  $ 8,289,905  $ 1,316,775 

Cost Fair Value

United States Government and 
Government Agency obligations

 $ 3,374,823  $ 3,356,230 

Corporate Bonds   32,192,826   32,175,917 

Common & Preferred Stock   14,254,106   18,636,065 

ULLICO Stock   39,826   39,826 

UnionPlus Stock   549   549 

Pooled separate account   3,912,245   4,516,445 

Short-term Investments   1,042,039   1,042,039 

Total  $ 54,816,414  $ 59,767,071 

Interest and Dividends  $ 1,820,335 

Net realized and unrealized 
gain (loss) on investments   2,581,522 

Investment and bank fees   (231,462)

 $ 4,170,395 
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NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2021, property and equipment consisted of the following:

NOTE 8. 401(K) PLANS

The International Union maintains two 401(k) plans, one for International Union employees and one for Job Corps employees.  The 
International Union contributes 6% of salary for eligible employees.  These contributions totaled $528,094 for the International Union 
employees and $248,820 for the Job Corp employees for the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 9. MULTIEMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The International Union contributes to a multiemployer defined benefit pension plan under the terms of a collective-bargaining agreement 
and a participation agreement that covers its union-represented employees.  The risks of participating in this multiemployer defined benefit 
pension plan are different from a single-employer plan in the following aspects:  

Assets contributed to the multiemployer defined benefit pension plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees 
of other participating employers.  

If a participating employer stops contributing to the multiemployer defined benefit pension plan, the unfunded obligations of the 
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers.  

If the International Union chooses to stop participating in its multiemployer defined benefit pension plan, the International Union may 
be required to pay that multiemployer defined benefit pension plan an amount based on the underfunded status of the multiemployer 
defined benefit pension plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.  

The International Union’s participation in this multiemployer defined benefit pension plan for the annual period ended December 31, 2021, 
is outlined in the table below.  The zone status is based on information that the International Union received from the multiemployer defined 
benefit pension plan and is certified by the multiemployer defined benefit pension plan’s actuary.  Among other factors, pension plans in the 
red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded, pension plans in the orange zone are less than 80 percent funded and are in seriously 
endangered status, pension plans in the yellow zone are less than 80 percent funded, and pension plans in the green zone are at least 80 
percent funded.

***The staff employees of the International Union participate in the International Painters and Allied Trades Industry Pension Plan through a 
collective bargaining agreement.  Employees that are not covered under the collective bargaining agreement are covered by a participation 
agreement.  The participation agreement does not have an expiration date.

Land  $ 872,714 

Furniture and Equipment   5,423,513 

National Training Facility building   11,287,341 

Headquarters building   13,194,745 

Generators   1,491,462 

Residence Hall building   5,172,593 

Residential Townhouse 432,310

Automobiles   89,209 

  37,963,887 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization   (23,570,681)

Net Property and Equipment  $ 14,393,206 

a.

b.

c.

Legal Name of Pension Plan
Pension Plan’s Employer 
Identification Number

Pension Plan’s 
Plan Number

Pension Protection Act 
Zone Status

Expiration Date of 
Collective Bargaining 

AgreementZone Status

Extended 
Amortization 

Provisions Used?

International Painters and Allied 
Trades Industry Pension Plan 52-0673909 001

Orange as 
of 01/01/21 No

August 31, 2026   
***
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NOTE 9. MULTIEMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 

NOTE 10. AFFILIATIONS PER CAPITA 

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the International Union 
incurred per capita expenses to affiliated organizations as follows:

NOTE 11. RELATED ENTITIES 

The Building Fund currently leases a portion of the headquarters 
building space to the International Painters and Allied Trades 
Industry Pension Plan (Pension Plan), Painters and Allied Trades 
Labor-Management Cooperation Initiative (LMCI), and Painters and 
Allied Trades for Children’s Hope Foundation (PATCH).  The Building 
Fund also leases office space in the national training center to the 
International Union of Painters and Allied Trades Finishing Trades 
Institute (FTI).  The Building Fund received $1,884,697 in rent from 
these entities for the year ended December 31, 2021.

On October 31, 2005, the Death Benefit Fund loaned $4,500,000 
to the IUPAT Building Corp, LLC to be used for renovating the 
national training facility.  The loan is secured by national training 
facility property.  On June 22, 2010, the Death Benefit Fund loaned 
an additional $9,922,800 to the IUPAT Building Corp, LLC to make 
the loan $14,000,000 to be used to pay for the new headquarters 
and residence hall.  The loan is payable in monthly installments 
of $75,248 beginning August 1, 2010, including interest at the 
annual rate of 5.00%.  Final payment is due in July 2040.  Interest 
expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 for this loan totaled 
$555,206.

As of December 31, 2021, the future principal maturities of this 
loan are as follows:

Legal Name of Pension Plan

Contributions to 
the Pension Plan

Contributions to the Pension 
Plan greater than 5% of total 
Pension Plan Contributions 

(Plan year ending)

Employer 
Contribution Rates

Number of Employees 
Covered by Plan

12/31/2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2021

International Painters and Allied 
Trades Industry Pension Plan $3,642,664 No, Plan year ending 12/31/21.

18.97% of employees’ 
salaries & $3.30 per hour 

per month 150

Legal Name of Pension Plan

Funding Improvement 
Plan or Rehabilitation Plan 
Implemented or Pending?

Surcharge paid to Pension Plan 
by the International Union of 
Painters and Allied Trades?

Minimum contributions required in 
future by CBA, statutory requirements, 

or other contractual requirements?

No If yes, description.

International Painters and Allied 
Trades Industry Pension Plan

Funding Improvement    
Plan Implemented Yes No N/A

AFL-CIO  $ 581,644 

AFL-CIO - State (Full Affiliation Program)   650,010 

North America's Building Trades Unions   597,552 

BWI Building and Wood Workers Int'l   59,997 

Maritime Tades Dept., AFL-CIO   4,320 

Union Label Trades Dept., AFL-CIO   6,000 

Metal Trades Department, AFL-CIO   108,372 

IUPAT Canadian Labour Congress (U.S. Dollars)   74,879 

Union Sportsmen’s Alliance   75,000 

Bluegreen Alliance   25,000 

Department of Professional Employees   1,216 

National Heavy & Highway Coalition   12,000 

Canadian Provincial Federation of Labor (U.S. Dollars)   34,980 

Total  $2,230,970 

Year Ended December 31 Death Benefit Fund

2022  $ 365,559 

2023   384,262 

2024   403,921 

2025   424,587 

2026   446,309 

Thereafter   8,889,667 

Total  $ 10,914,305 
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NOTE 11. RELATED ENTITIES (continued)

Certain operating expenses are incurred by the International Union during the year and are allocated to the related entities of the 
International Union based on allocation studies.  These operating expenses include shared accounting support, computer technology 
support, reimbursement for postage, meeting and travel expenses and other miscellaneous reimbursements.

For the year ending December 31, 2021, the allocation of expenses received during the year by the International Union was as follows:

At December 31, 2021, the allocation of expenses due to the International Union was as follows:

The International Union also pays related parties for miscellaneous expenses that include classroom rentals, employee withholdings, meeting 
and travel reimbursements and other miscellaneous reimbursements.  For the year ending December 31, 2021, the allocation of expenses from 
related parties and amounts payable at year end were as follows:

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The International Union is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of operations.  Some of the litigation involves matters 
common to any organization of comparable size, including personnel, employment, contract, and trademark issues.  None of this 
litigation involves any substantial potential liability on the part of the International Union.

FTI LMCI Pension Plan PATCH
Total Allocated to 

Related Parties

Accounting & human resources support  $ 160,752  $ 127,195  $ 452,425  $ 27,365  $ 767,737 

Computer technology support   117,715   24,169   110,869 -   252,753 

Postage reimbursement   6,762   7,849   75,559   393   90,563 

Meeting and travel reimbursement   201,424   93,430   5,341   21,351   321,546 

Other reimbursements   10,497   13,427   170,822   510   195,256 

Totals  $ 497,150  $ 266,070  $ 815,016  $ 49,619  $ 1,627,855 

FTI LMCI Pension Plan PATCH
Total Allocated to 

Related Parties

Accounting & human resources support $ -  $ -  $ -   $ 1,241  $ 1,241 

Computer technology support   13,014   2,924   10,842  -     26,780 

Postage reimbursement   100   52   13,885  -     14,037 

Meeting and travel reimbursement   168,603   248,785   28,241   15,915   461,544 

Other reimbursements   1,964   50   86  -     2,100 

Totals  $ 183,681  $ 251,811  $ 53,054  $ 17,156  $ 505,702 

Amount allocated from related parties 
during the year ended December 31, 2021

Amount due to related parties at 
December 31, 2021

FTI  $ 19,967  $ 1,025 

LMCI   39,054   1,025 

Pension Plan   95,963   117,176 

PATCH   22,216   3,229 

Totals   $ 177,200   $ 122,455 
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NOTE 13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure 
fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) 
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 

Basis of Fair Value Measurement:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that 
the International Union has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices 
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 
liability; inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.  

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the 
asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no transfers in or out of levels 1, 2, or 3.

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Government and Government 
Agency Obligations  $ 3,356,230  $ 3,356,230 $ - $ -

Corporate bonds   32,175,917   -     32,175,917 -

Common stock   18,636,065   18,636,065 - -

UnionPlus stock   549   -   -   549 

ULLICO stock   39,826   -   -   39,826 

Short-term investments   1,042,039   1,042,039 - -

Total assets in the fair value hierarchy   55,250,626  $23,034,334 $32,175,917  $ 40,375 

Investments measured at NAV(a)  4,516,445 

Total Investments  $59,767,071 

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Total ULLICO Stock UnionPlus Stock

Beginning balance  $ 40,375  $ 39,826  $549 

Realized gains - - -

Unrealized gains - - -

Purchases - - -

Sales - - -

Transfers into Level 3 - - -

Ending balance  $40,375  $39,826  $549 

The availability of observable market data is monitored to assess the appropriate classification of financial instruments within the fair 
value hierarchy.  Changes in economic conditions or model-based valuation techniques may require the transfer of financial instruments 
from one fair value level to another.  In such instances, the transfer is reported at the beginning of the period.
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Discount rate: 3.00%

Mortality: RP-2000 Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment projected to 2005 with Scale AA 

Retirement Age: 100% of eligible participants are assumed to retire at age 63

Fair Value Unfunded 
Commitments

Redemption 
Frequency

Redemption 
Notice

Pooled separate account 
Fixed income: 

 $ 4,516,445 $ - Monthly 90 daysUllico Separate Account W1

Total  $ 4,516,445 $ -

NOTE 13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a) In accordance with Subtopic 820-10 Fair Value Measurement (820), Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate 
Net Asset Value per share (or Its Equivalent), investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value hierarchy.  The fair 
value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the 
statement of net assets available for benefits.

The unfunded commitments and redemption information 
are as follows at December 31, 2021:

Separate Account W1 (“the Fund”) is a pooled separate account offered through a group annuity contract issued by Union Labor Life.  The 
Fund is invested in high quality construction and permanent first mortgages in commercial real estate projects.  All loans are secured by 
properties geographically diversified throughout the United States.  All construction must be performed by union contractors.  Separate 
Account W1 is designed to provide tax-exempt non-pension funds (general treasury, health and welfare, training, industry advancement, 
etc.) a specialized fixed income investment alternative that seeks to enhance performance returns, reduce portfolio volatility and stimulate 
the unionized construction industry.  Separate Account W1’s objective is to outperform the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index 
(“Index”) net of fees over a full market cycle.  The Fund capitalizes on the income component of private commercial first mortgages as 
well as mortgage fees paid to the Fund by the borrower.

NOTE 14. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The International Union provides postretirement life insurance for all employees and postretirement medical insurance for former general 
officers or general executive board members and their spouses.  To be eligible for these benefits, employees must retire and immediately 
be eligible to receive a pension from the International Painters and Allied Trades Industry Pension Fund.  Generally, retirees and their 
spouses may continue medical benefits until the earliest of the attainment of age 65 or death.  The life insurance benefit continues for 
the life of the retiree.  The life insurance benefit is in the amount of $10,000 or $5,000 depending on job classification.  The International 
Union reports in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 715, “Compensation-
Retirement Benefits” (FASB ASC 715).

The amount reported as the postretirement benefit obligation represents the actuarial present value of those estimated future benefits 
that are attributed to employees’ service rendered to the date of the consolidated financial statements.  Postretirement benefits include 
future benefits expected to be paid to or for currently retired employees and their spouses and employees and their spouses after 
retirement from service.  Prior to an active employee’s full eligibility date, the postretirement benefit obligation is the portion of the 
expected postretirement benefit obligation that is attributed to that employee’s service rendered to the valuation date.  

The actuarial present value of the expected postretirement benefit obligation is determined by the Plan’s actuary and is the amount that 
results from applying actuarial assumptions to historical claims cost data to estimate future annual incurred claims costs per participant 
and to adjust such estimates for the time value of money (through discounts for interest) and the probability of payment (by means of 
decrements such as those for death or retirement) between the valuation date and the expected date of payment.  The actuarial cost 
method used to determine the liability is the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method.  

For measurement purposes, 9.00% annual rate of increase in the per person cost of covered medical health care benefits was assumed, 
grading down to 5% over 8 years.

The following were other significant assumptions used in the valuations as of December 31, 2020:

The foregoing assumptions are based on the presumption that the International Union will continue.  Were the International Union 
to terminate, different actuarial assumptions and other factors might be applicable in determining the actuarial present value of the 
postretirement benefit obligations.

The estimated postretirement benefit obligation liability at December 31, 2021 of $1,718,440 is based on an actuarial valuation report 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021.
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NOTE 15. LOAN RECEIVABLE

On September 17, 2014, the International Union loaned $1,600,000 
to the Painters District Council 51 to be used to pay off their property 
located at 4700 Boston Way, Lanham, MD.  The loan is secured by the 
clean title of the two buildings on this property.  The loan is payable in 
monthly installments of $10,559 beginning October 15, 2014, including 
interest at the annual rate of 5.00%.  Final payment is due in September 
2034.  Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2021 for this 
loan totaled $61,423.

Year Ended December 31 DC 51 Loan Receivable

2022  $ 68,629 

2023   72,140 

2024   75,831 

2025   79,710 

2026   83,788 

Thereafter   812,732 

 $ 1,192,830 

NOTE 17. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY 

The following represents the International Union’s financial assets available within one year of the statements of financial position date 
for general expenditure at December 31, 2021:

As part of the International Union’s liquidity plan, excess cash is 
invested in short-term investments.

NOTE 18. NET ASSETS 

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the year ended 
December 31, 2021:

Net assets without donor restrictions for the year ended December 
31, 2021 are as follows:

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions for the 
year ended December 31, 2021 were $1,484,687.

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The International Union has evaluated subsequent events through 
May 24, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were 
available to be issued, and they have been evaluated in accordance 
with relevant accounting standards. 

2021

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 15,903,064 

Accrued interest receivable   198,661 

Per capita receivable   4,720,287 

International admin dues receivable   1,802,362 

Due from related funds   540,340 

Due from U.S. Government   1,316,775 

Other receivable   356,545 

Prepaid expenses   471,872 

Loan to affiliate   1,192,830 

Investments   59,767,071 

Property and equipment, net   14,393,206 

Total financial assets  $  100,663,013 

Less amounts not available to be used 
within one year:

Assets with donor restrictions   4,393,201 

Loan to affiliate   1,192,830 

Property and equipment, net   14,393,206 

  19,979,237 

Financial assets available to meet general 
expenditures over the next twelve months  $ 80,683,776 

Specific Purpose   
PAT PC  $ 4,393,201 

Undesignated  $ 92,653,558 

NOTE 16. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The International Union invests in various investments.  Investments are 
exposed to various risks such as economic, interest rate, market, and 
sector risks.  Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, 
it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments 
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect 
the amounts reported in the statement of financial position.

As of December 31, 2021, the future principal maturities 
of this loan are as follows:
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SCHEDULE OF BUILDING FUND ACTIVITY BY BUILDING      
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021      

Training 
Center Facility 

Headquarters 
Building

Residence 
Hall Building  Townhouse  Total 

Revenues
Office rent  $ 1,265,854  $ 673,929  $ -    $ -    $ 1,939,783 
Administrative cost reimbursements   3,882   94,768   -     -     98,650 

Room rentals   -     -     352,426   -     352,426 

Cafeteria revenue   -     -     88,937   -     88,937 
Investment income   (6,232)   (6,232)   (6,232)   -     (18,696)

Other revenue   -     97,899   1,708   5,040   104,647 

Total revenue   1,263,504   860,364   436,839   5,040   2,565,747 

Expenses
Personnel costs   175   689,884   2,755   3,353   696,167 

Legal and litigation   413   812   -     -     1,225 

Auditing fees & other professional fees   42,311   54,066   42,311   -     138,688 

Meals and lodging expense

Hotel room expense   -     -     49,300   -     49,300 

Meal expenses   -     -     135,516   -     135,516 

Office and computer equipment   200,562   86,632   55,760   15,844   358,798 

Occupancy

Interest expense   185,072   185,113   185,073   -     555,258 

Electric utility expense   127,587   133,472   26,555   -     287,614 

Other utility expense   31,649   25,586   27,063   40   84,338 

Personal and property taxes   54,220   54,220   54,220   -     162,660 

Postage, printing and supplies   -     96,948   5,000   -     101,948 

Insurance   83   83   84   -     250 

Depreciation expense   600,283   688,587   380,340   -     1,669,210 

Other   11,489   6,869   8,644   100   27,102 

Total expenses
  1,253,844   2,022,272   972,621   19,337   4,268,074 

Net income (loss)  $ 9,660  $ (1,161,908)  $ (535,782)  $ (14,297)  $ (1,702,327)
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PENSION DEPARTMENT UPDATE
Positive Moves from the Pension Fund

Canadian Updates

The Fund office was excited to see a majority of support from 
the membership in a participant survey related to our recently 
announced Rehabilitation Plan. It appears that our members 
understand the tough moves our Trustees had to make by 
putting the U.S. Plan into a Rehabilitation Plan in order to 
protect our Fund from market volatility and shore up our assets 
for our younger members. We are on course to revitalize and 
modernize our pension plan and hope to have more exciting 
news with positive changes in the coming months.

As we look to revitalize our plan, we’ve recently sent out 
Requests for Proposals for all of our Fund professionals. 
With the adoption of the Rehabilitation Plan earlier this year, 
we moved to a new actuary, Segal Consulting. They were 
instrumental in helping the Trustees develop the Plan and find 
innovative solutions to ease the transition with our members. 
The Trustees also elected to split our attorney presence into 
two different buckets. We will now have Anne Mayerson 

with Bredhoff & Kaiser acting as General Counsel to the Fund 
and the law office Tucker Arensberg will focus on our audits, 
delinquency, and collections matters. They are well-seasoned 
and highly regarded in the audit and delinquency field, and 
we expect they will make a big impact on our 
collection efforts. 

The Trustees are also considering some 
other changes to the professional 
panel, including taking a hard look 
at the current investment managers 
and interviewing competing firms to 
determine what would be best for the 
future of the Fund. Several competing 
managers will present their innovative 
and fresh ideas for our Plan at the Board 
of Trustees meeting this fall.

As we steer our U.S. Plan onto the right track, it is time 
to take a closer look at our Canadian Plan, from internal 
processes, changes in provincial laws, and relationships with 
our affiliated councils. The Fund office had its first Canadian 
Board of Trustees meeting in Canada this spring.  In years 
past, the meetings were in the states; however, we want 
to be more inclusive and submergent in Canadian-specific 
issues and locales, and we feel it’s important to have more 
of a presence in Canada. The spring meeting was hosted 
by District Council 46 in Toronto and we are excited to be 
traveling to Vancouver this fall. We also hope to revitalize our 
pension liaison program with all of our Canadian affiliates 
and expect to have a training later this year to get everyone 
up to speed with the rapidly changing Canadian laws and 
retirement rules. The Fund is pleased to report we have 
retained a Canadian-based attorney, Simon Archer with 
Goldblatt Partners, to help us navigate the various laws and 
regulations in Canada. The Fund is also looking at bringing in 
a Canadian Plan compliance officer to assist our pension staff 
in properly applying all of the complex rules to our pensioners’ 
records prior to payment.  

As we look to these exciting changes in both the U.S. and 
Canadian Plans, we want to encourage all of our affiliates 
to stay active and engaged in their local meetings, local 
government, and local politics. We all must work as One 

Union to continue to bring in new 
members, promote positive and 

union-friendly legislation, and 
support the crafts that pay 
our wages. The health and 
modernization of the Pension 
Plan rely heavily on the robust 
support of all our affiliates 
and members.  

Administrator Terry Nelson
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Rickie Lee Albertson ..............................LU 157

Ernest Alejandro ....................................LU 660

Susan Marie Alm ....................................LU 677

John E Altiere .......................................LU 2011

Vincent John Altieri ...............................LU 333

Kenneth Stephen Alvarez ...................LU 1621

Richard Henry Aparicio .........................LU 636

David John Arduini ..................................LU 38

Henry Arias .................................................LU 1

Charles Edward Armbruster, Jr. ..........LU 1275

Lee Robert Arnold .................................LU 490

David Christopher Arsenault ................LU 178

Thomas G Arthur ......................................LU 86

Richard Thomas Ashbacher .....................LU 27

Jesse Leon Bagley, Sr. ..............................LU 61

Donald Allen Baker ..................................LU 88

Greg J Barnes .........................................LU 841

Rigoberto Barnica ................................LU 1010

James Baumeister ................................LU 2011

Charles James Beatty, Jr. .......................LU 368

Michael T Bell .........................................LU 238

Stoyan George Belotlieff ......................LU 112

Berislav Beretin .......................................LU 18

William Nolan Berkley ...........................LU 118

Jay Dean Berna ....................................LU 1959

Eugen T Biondic ......................................LU 963

Thomas Daniel Bohl .............................LU 1275

Brian Lloyd Bohling .................................LU 79

Scott Frederick Bohringer .....................LU 113

Jahaziel Bonilla ..........................................LU 3

William John Bosk, Jr. ..............................LU 79

Daniel Duane Bosquez ..........................LU 386

Peter Banuelos Bracamontes ..................LU 52

Ervin Bradley ..........................................LU 300

Jeffery David Brands ...........................LU 1292

Lawrence Aloycious Branigan ............LU 2011

Michael Dane Brantley ..........................LU 159

William D Brown ....................................LU 660

Mackie Dean Bubnick ............................LU 249

William Bruce Buchanan........................LU 437

Bernard Edward Buckner, Jr. ...................LU 33

Bruce Campbell Budworth ....................LU 300

Frank Aloysius Burke, III. .....................LU 1009

Joseph Daniel Burton, III. ....................LU 1955

Phillip Ray Burton ....................................LU 47

Earl Randolph Bush .............................LU 1275

Rodrigo Caballero ...................................LU 77

Jose Antonio Agrelo-Cadorniga .........LU 1047

Jose N Calderon ...................................LU 1136

Gregory Calvin .......................................LU 159

Sean J Campbell .......................................LU 24

Stephen Warren Campbell ....................LU 636

Richard Canada, Jr. ................................LU 774

Jimmy Caraballo ......................................LU 27

Marc Todd Carlson .................................LU 246

Robert M Carpentieri ..............................LU 20

Kelly Irvin Carter .....................................LU 77

William Brown Carter ............................LU 891

John L Cassello .......................................LU 277

Dania Castellon ....................................LU 1175

Mike Castro ..............................................LU 52

Victor Castro, Jr. ...................................LU 1009

Felix Montoya Cedillo ...........................LU 130

Michael Joseph Celello ..........................LU 201

Armando Cerna Rivera ............................LU 95

George Michael Chattem ......................LU 806

Guillermo Chavez.................................LU 1036

Benjamin Cholico ...................................LU 636

Christopher John Christophersen.......LU 1176

Dennis Demetrio Citero ......................LU 1009

Robert Ross Ciulla .................................LU 150

Kenneth Allen Clark .................................LU 61

Robert Joseph Clark ..................................LU 7

Miguel Angel Collado ..............................LU 24

Peter Joseph Collins ................................LU 20

Frank William Comaduran .......................LU 52

George Charles Cook ...............................LU 90

John Michael Cook .................................LU 178

Matthew James Cook ............................LU 257

William Gladstone Cooper, Iv. ..............LU 252

Jose Do Rosario Cordeiro ......................LU 806

Robert Allan Cornish, Sr. .......................LU 178

John Thomas Corns ................................LU 603

Darren Omer Correll ............................LU 1118

Robert V Coss .............................................LU 7

Michael Lynn Cothern ...........................LU 118

Charles M Cottongim ..............................LU 47

David Eugene Coulter ...........................LU 963

Scott Allen Cronin ..................................LU 368

Franklin John Cross ................................LU 636

Gregory Robert Cubus ..........................LU 880

Cosimo Cuccurullo ...................................LU 24

Carlos Antonio Cuesta, Jr. ...................LU 1007

Eusebio Eliecer Cumplido .....................LU 195

Steve Anthony D`Atrio ........................LU 1244

Jose Rosa Da Costa ..............................LU 1047

Alan James Dabrowski ............................LU 27

Christopher Dachille ............................LU 1010

Leroy Billy Daise ..................................LU 1087

Jorge Isaac Davila ..................................LU 365

Jeffrey Edward Davis ............................LU 452

Jon Michael Davis ................................LU 1036

Darin Leon Day ......................................LU 123

Jody Joseph Day ..................................LU 1964

Rodney Lee Day .....................................LU 555

Darrell Thomas De Greve ....................LU 2012

Adrian De Hoyos ....................................LU 159

John Martin Deal, Sr. .............................LU 741
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David Allen Dearborn ............................LU 181

Bruce Alan Dehaan ................................LU 312

Charles W Dell ......................................LU 2011

Richard Otto Denzler ...........................LU 1331

James F Devlin, III. ...............................LU 1044

Tommaso Di Caro .....................................LU 24

Arturo Diaz .............................................LU 636

Juan Antonio Diaz ................................LU 1456

Matt Thomas Dillon ...............................LU 273

John Thomas Dixon ................................LU 159

Michael Jay Dobbs ...................................LU 61

Mark Vincent Donohue .........................LU 718

Daniel M Doskis .....................................LU 365

Dennis Lewis Dowell ...........................LU 2001

Charles Leslie Downie .........................LU 1175

Raymond Ellsworth Doyle ....................LU 767

Joseph Jay Dreher ..................................LU 106

David Jay Dryer..........................................LU 6

Michael William Dunn ...........................LU 368

Howard L Dunton ...................................LU 677

James Patrick Duphiney ...................................

Richard Edward Dutton, Jr. ...................LU 178

James Cameron Eastman ........................LU 47

Reginald Charles Edwards ....................LU 130

Arthur Joseph Evans ..............................LU 159

James Evans .........................................LU 1010

David Benjamin Fairbanks ....................LU 209

Dean Richard Fanning ...........................LU 681

Martin James Fay .....................................LU 88

Scott Edward Feehan ............................LU 880

Peter Feinblatt .....................................LU 1007

Michael Robert Feldman .....................LU 1955

George William Fellabaum, III. ...........LU 2006

Daniel Joseph Filion ................................LU 95

Gerardo Fiore ...........................................LU 19

Angel Flores .........................................LU 1621

Terry Michael Ford .................................LU 707

Sheila Annette Foster Louis-Juste ..........LU 19

Richard Anthony Foster ..........................LU 38

Gary Henry Fournier ..............................LU 252

Edward Frazier .....................................LU 2011

Douglas Allen Freed ..............................LU 788

John Wesley Freeman, III. ........................LU 47

Eugene Bernard Fresquez .....................LU 823

Richard Scott Frie ..................................LU 452

Guillermina Rodriguez Fuentes ............LU 636

Charles Edward Furbee, Sr. .....................LU 91

Eugene Anthony Gallegos .....................LU 774

Robert Eugene Gallup, Jr. ......................LU 471

Philip Galullo ..........................................LU 481

Robert Leo Ganster, Jr. ........................LU 1955

Martin Alberto Garcia ...........................LU 636

John Joseph Garwood ...........................LU 100

Jeffrey Lucian Gaston ............................LU 120

Robert Bruce Gaudert .........................LU 1010

Robert Douglas Gawron .....................LU 1087

Keith Allen Georgeff ...............................LU 27

Steven Wayne Gessell .........................LU 1621

Michael Allen Gheen .............................LU 555

Jose Gibert ...........................................LU 1036

Roland Melvin Gilson ..............................LU 61

Zivko Glavan ..........................................LU 113

Jeffrey Lynn Glave .................................LU 829

Lloyd Goldenberg .....................................DC 9

Efren Gomez ...........................................LU 159

David Allan Gorby .................................LU 476

Leon Stanley Gorkiewicz ......................LU 660

Larry Scott Graf .....................................LU 252

Richard Earl Graham, Jr. ......................LU 1136

Kenneth Edwin Greenhaw ..................LU 1621

Roy Bly Greer .......................................LU 1621

Exford Wilbert Griffiths ......................LU 1974

Daniel Guerra .............................................LU 7

Gary Busha Gunter ................................LU 193

Jon Henry Hads ......................................LU 300

Jeffrey Scott Hallam ..............................LU 707

Stan Leon Hanenburg, Jr. ....................LU 1136

Richard Lee Haney ...............................LU 1803

Willie George Harper .............................LU 188

Kenneth John Harpole ...........................LU 156

Gary Frederick Harrington ....................LU 391

Michael Allan Harris ..............................LU 364

Glen Michael Harrison ...........................LU 718

Anthony Martin Hart ...........................LU 2006

David James Haskin ...............................LU 155

Douglas Gino Hayhurst .........................LU 505

Roger Lee Heavner ................................LU 847

James Jude Hebert ..............................LU 1333

Stanley Robert Hegerfeld ...................LU 1165

John G Heiman .....................................LU 1955

Daniel Hernandez ....................................LU 27

Leon Edward Herrick .............................LU 481

Don Layne Herrod ................................LU 1778

Scott David Higgin .................................LU 269

Michael Joseph Higgins, III. .....................LU 10

David Lee Hochhalter ............................LU 567

James William Hoffman.........................LU 806

Delbert Wayne Holcomb .......................LU 639

Marty Lee Holder ...................................LU 386

Donald Lee Holliday ..............................LU 209

Thearone Lynn Hollingsworth ..............LU 368

Kenneth Paul Hoover...........................LU 1962

James Franklin Hopkins.......................LU 1756

James Patrick Hopkins ..........................LU 252

James Paul Horvath ...............................LU 639

Joseph Donald Hovey ............................LU 112

Skender Alexandros Hoxha .....................LU 24

Tomas R Huezo .........................................LU 24
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Ivan Theodore Huggins .......................LU 1094

Douglas Jay Hunt ...................................LU 427

Richard Louis Emanuel Hunt ...............LU 1955

Michael James Hunyadi .........................LU 181

Dennis Joseph Hussey ...........................LU 357

Thomas Joseph Hustus ........................LU 1122

Shirley Ann Hyde .................................LU 1937

Frank Joseph Imbert ............................LU 1976

Rick Eugene Impola ...............................LU 106

Miguel Ismerio .......................................LU 159

George Frank Janatik ............................LU 460

Berth Ake Jansson ...............................LU 1964

Juan David Jaramillo ...............................LU 18

Karen L Jensen .........................................LU 61

Scott Brent Jeppesen ............................LU 159

Ambrocio De La Cruz Jimenez ........ LU 8A-28A

Scott William Johannes .........................LU 660

Frederick Louis Johnson, III. ..................LU 252

Scott Edward Johnson .............................LU 10

Charles Maurice Jones .............................LU 77

Tyrone Rodney Jones ...........................LU 1772

John Charles Kane ...............................LU 1399

Stavros Kapeleris .................................LU 1036

Gregory Fred Kappos ..............................LU 52

Jay Duane Keller ....................................LU 169

Thomas Lee Keller .................................LU 829

Francis Patrick Kelly ..............................LU 252

Timothy W Kemp ..................................LU 1964

Paul Gerard Kern .....................................LU 43

Peter Paul Kertesz ...............................LU 1791

Hoa Khuc.................................................LU 300

Eugene Rodger Kingsley .......................LU 505

Theresa F Knoedler ................................LU 345

Richard John Knorr, II. ...........................LU 707

Joseph Edward Kolick, Jr. .............................LU 

Gary Robert Korneliussen .....................LU 300

Ronald Korneliussen ..............................LU 300

Marek Kosowski...................................LU 1969

Thomas E Kowalski ..............................LU 2018

Ryszard Krawiecki ...............................LU 1047

Theodore William Kretschmer ..............LU 718

Christian Michael Kuenn .......................LU 770

Frederick Allen Kustes ...........................LU 118

Ramon Antonio Lado ...............................LU 20

Joseph Edward Lambrecht ..................LU 1922

Gregory A Laplaca .................................LU 707

Paul Michael Laporta ..........................LU 1094

Robert Arthur Lardon, Jr. ........................LU 47

Gary Francis Laurie ..............................LU 1976

Dale Michael Lavrey ................................LU 43

Randall Scott Law ................................LU 1269

Thomas Gregory Layton ..........................LU 47

James Thomas Lemmon ......................LU 2011

Dale Clark Lester ...................................LU 845

James Edmond Level .............................LU 130

Ernest William Liepe, Jr. ........................LU 460

Robert Leon Lindsey ..............................LU 300

Lance Eliot Linton ..................................LU 707

Ronald Eugene Liska .............................LU 550

Richard Dean Littlefield ......................LU 1468

Brian Kevin Logan ..................................LU 252

Keith Allen Logsdon ..............................LU 751

Scott Allen Long ..................................LU 1705

Cesilio Longoria .........................................LU 3

Shirley Anne Lord ................................LU 1140

Jeffery Luces ........................................LU 1010

Santiago R Luna-Ramirez ........................LU 86

Gary Lee Lyda ......................................LU 1010

John Scott Macdonald ...........................LU 391

Tomas Macias .......................................LU 1399

Francis Vincent Maddalo .....................LU 2011

Kenneth George Madziarek ....................LU 27

Eric C Mahrenholz ....................................LU 47

James Michael Malatesta .....................LU 201

Louis Sam Mantagas ...............................LU 24

Kevin Eugene Marsden ..........................LU 256

Douglas Roger Marsh ..........................LU 1399

Nelson M Marta .....................................LU 452

Samuel Martinez ..................................LU 1136

Tomislav Martinovic ................................LU 20

Michael Anthony Mastoris ....................LU 476

Allen Reed Mathewson .........................LU 159

Dimitrios A Mavrophilipos ....................LU 476

Cynthia Albert Mayon ...........................LU 252

Lawrence Wesley Mcallister .................LU 963

William Mccafferty ..............................LU 2011

Marvin M Mccampbell .............................LU 57

Michael Bernard Mccann ......................LU 259

Kevin Michael Mccarthy ..........................LU 25

William Edward Mccool.......................LU 2011

Timothy Mark Mccrossen ......................LU 357

John Michael Mcdevitt ..........................LU 694

Joseph Michael Mcgee ..........................LU 252

James Patrick Mcgrath ........................LU 1719

James Thomas Mcintosh, Jr. ................LU 1486

David Leroy Mckee ..................................LU 31

John Joseph Mclaughlin ........................LU 939

Scott Lee Mcnees .................................LU 1144

Rodney Angus Mcphee ........................LU 1803

Brian Scott Menefee ...........................LU 1144

Donald Michael ......................................LU 963

Gregory Wayne Midkiff .........................LU 970

Bruce Joseph Milazzo ..........................LU 1175

Gary Dean Milke ....................................LU 567

Donald Ray Miller ..................................LU 123

Douglas Edward Miller ..........................LU 411

Harry David Miller ...............................LU 1955

James Charles Miller, Jr. ........................LU 460

Thomas James Miller .............................LU 505

Vincent Mark Miller .............................LU 1094

William Charles Miller ...........................LU 481
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Joseph Christopher Mimm, Jr. ............LU 2011

Juan Andres Minaya ................................LU 18

Jeffrey Lee Minor ...................................LU 581

Thomas Edward Mitchell ....................LU 1955

Terry Lee Mittelstaedt  ...........................LU 79

Juan Gregorio Moncibais ....................LU 1036

Sergio Raul Monje .................................LU 636

Joselito Leyran Montenegro ...............LU 1053

David C Mooty .....................................LU 1778

Fridel Morales ......................................LU 1036

Randal Boring Moree ............................LU 820

Victor Moreno ........................................LU 368

Brian James Morit ................................LU 1269

Gary Eugene Morris .............................LU 1176

Ronald Rex Mortimore ........................LU 1036

Mohamed Mohamed Moussa .................LU 24

Skender Mrkulic .......................................LU 19

William C Mulligan ..............................LU 1976

George Charles Mulqueen ....................LU 930

Emilio T Muracchioli ............................LU 1047

Isabel Murguia .....................................LU 1036

Carlos Hugo Murphy ............................LU 2347

Michael Bernard Murray .......................LU 201

David Charles Neal ................................LU 636

Carl Nebhut, Iii. ......................................LU 252

George William Nelson ..........................LU 252

Henry Noble ...........................................LU 150

Boris Isaakovich Norinsky .......................LU 24

Joseph Anthony Norton ........................LU 963

Edward James O`Brien ...........................LU 113

William Gerard O`Brien .........................LU 490

Ronald S Oates .......................................LU 201

Paul Christopher Oliver .........................LU 357

Cesar Olivos .............................................LU 20

Alpatrick Olson ........................................LU 79

Craig David Olson ..................................LU 106

Jose L Ospino .........................................LU 806

Francis G Ostrowski ...............................LU 252

Philip Otlano, Jr. .........................................LU 6

David Edwin Overly .............................LU 1803

Kelly Renee Overly ..............................LU 1803

Laurie M Pacheco-Cordeiro ................LU 1621

Zarif Pajazetovic ....................................LU 246

Frank Michael Palma ...........................LU 1486

Iordanis Papadopoulos ...........................LU 20

Michael John Passerello ........................LU 277

Michael John Patterson .......................LU 1621

Robert Charles Patti ............................LU 1036

David Ronald Payne ................................LU 31

James William Peloso ............................LU 639

Bradford Charles Perkins ....................LU 1719

James L Peronis ......................................LU 530

Anthony Perrini....................................LU 2011

David John Peterson ..................................LU 6

Eldrich Dwayne Phillips .........................LU 639

Philip Anthony Piatek ...........................LU 238

Scotty John Piscitelli.......................LU 8A-28A

Kelvin Ray Pizarro ................................LU 1281

Christopher Andrew Popich ................LU 1094

Jaime G Porras .........................................LU 24

Joseph Lee Porter ..................................LU 639

Julio Portillo ...........................................LU 112

Roy Douglas Powell .............................LU 1176

Shane Steven Pratt ..............................LU 1136

Johnnie Lee Price .................................LU 1773

Joseph Anthony Quintana .....................LU 823

Gary W Rains ..........................................LU 181

Alberto Rhadames Ramos ......................LU 18

Sacir Ramusovic .....................................LU 150

Michael Patrick Raybould .....................LU 660

Rodney Wayne Reed ..............................LU 963

Paul Allan Reichel ....................................LU 61

Mark David Reynolds ............................LU 150

Michael Thomas Richards ....................LU 1165

Jose Luis Rico .........................................LU 636

William Robert Rineberg ......................LU 604

David Paul Ritsch ...................................LU 660

Eric Joseph Rivero................................LU 1244

Ana Maria Rizo .........................................LU 27

John Robbolino, Jr. ...............................LU 1231

Alvin William Roberts ............................LU 252

Michael C Rocha.....................................LU 694

Juana Marta Rodriguez ...........................LU 78

Ruben Rodriguez ...................................LU 756

Richard Charles Rohm ...............................LU 6

Hernan David Rojas .............................LU 1036

Thomas C Rollins ....................................LU 226

Irma Romanes ......................................LU 1010

Patrick J Runeare .....................................LU 38

Bradley Scott Rush ................................LU 669

Darryl Don Juan Russell ........................LU 740

Robert James Sager ................................LU 31

Mark Edward Salapow ..............................LU 6

Randall Lee Salvaggio ...........................LU 130

Mackers Sandifer ...................................LU 505

Elmer Llwellyn Santmyer, Jr. .................LU 890

Richard Joseph Santoro ..........................LU 47

Clark Saxon ..........................................LU 1009

Jeffrey Olaf Scharin ...............................LU 241

Joyce Louise Schimele ...........................LU 452

Kenneth John Schinkel ..........................LU 694

Russell Lloyd Schrader ..........................LU 159

Andy Don Scott ....................................LU 1185

Billy Oneal Scott ....................................LU 934

William Ellswood Scott, Iv. ...................LU 106

Timothy Wayne Scruggs ........................LU 848

Anibal Gustavo Scuadroni ....................LU 155

David Dwight Seals .............................LU 1959

George Todd Sebar ..................................LU 91

Francesco Gildo Serrao .........................LU 481

Ibrahim Sessay .......................................LU 963
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Kenneth J Shannon ................................LU 357

Alexander I Sharuk ..............................LU 1237

Christopher Layton Sheehan ................LU 357

James Odes Sherer ..............................LU 1020

Curtis E Sherman .................................LU 1009

Michael Mark Shiroda ...........................LU 770

Stephen Morris Siegel .........................LU 1136

Ralph Thomas Signore ...........................LU 186

John A Sims ..........................................LU 1165

Harjinder Singh ........................................LU 20

Mark Anthony Sintic ..............................LU 505

Kevin Mark Slason .................................LU 452

Claude Arthur Smith ..............................LU 558

David Lawrence Smith ........................LU 1103

Joseph Michael Smith .............................LU 47

Kevin Frederick Tim Smith ..................LU 1165

Richard M Smith ......................................LU 31

Ronald Lewis Smith ...............................LU 368

Tommy Keith Smith ...............................LU 169

Bradley Eric Snyder ...............................LU 567

David Bryan Snyder .............................LU 1621

Eduardo Soliz .......................................LU 1008

Robert A Soulliere ...............................LU 2352

Michael A Souvigney ...........................LU 2011

Jon Thomas Sowa ................................LU 1959

Bryant Joseph Sowell, Jr. ......................LU 694

Thomas Eugene Spano, Sr. ..................LU 2006

Peter Spooner ........................................LU 460

John A Springman ................................LU 1165

Gregory John St Leger ........................LU 1159

Jeffrey Lee Stanton ...............................LU 804

Tomasz Miroslaw Starczewski ..............LU 181

Lawrence J Stavish ..............................LU 1976

Patrick William Steele ...........................LU 256

Charles George Stein ..............................LU 91

David Peter Stencel ...............................LU 770

Craig Steven Stiskin ............................LU 1281

Mark Stoner .............................................LU 48

Randle George Strong .........................LU 1165

Kenneth W Stuewe ..............................LU 1136

Raymond M Sullivan ............................LU 1087

Robert Dennis Sullivan ..........................LU 963

Steven J Sycz ..........................................LU 841

Paul James Synnamon .........................LU 2011

Edward Szlek, Jr. ..................................LU 1009

David Charles Tadlock .............................LU 61

Harry Lee Taylor .....................................LU 880

Albert Richard Tenkate, Jr. ..................LU 1047

Bogdan Wojciech Tereszkiewicz .........LU 1331

Kim Scott Thanasiu ....................................LU 7

Charles Wesley Thomas, Jr. .................LU 1756

Demetri Thomas...................................LU 1047

Kenrick C Thompson ................................LU 24

Ronnie Floyd Thornton ........................LU 1837

Gary James Thumm..............................LU 1047

Robert Lewis Todd .................................LU 555

Luis Alberto Toledo ..............................LU 1937

Charles Anthony Tornetta .....................LU 300

Mark Edward Torpey .............................LU 201

Antonio Torres, Jr. ..................................LU 775

Thomas Christopher Treloar .................LU 845

Mark Andrew Triscila ...........................LU 2006

Andre T Tucker .....................................LU 1991

Thomas Joseph Tumiel ...........................LU 660

Salvador Turcios ...................................LU 1010

Constantine Armstron Turner ...............LU 391

Barbara Ann Tyson ...................................LU 86

Ramon L Urbina ...................................LU 1087

Freddy Ricky Valdez ...............................LU 159

Gilberto Flores Valdez ...........................LU 636

John J Vanier ..........................................LU 636

Mary Jane Velez .....................................LU 707

Darnell Vereen .....................................LU 1719

Stephen Vislocky ...................................LU 155

Glenn D Viveiros ....................................LU 806

Frank Stephen Vochinsky ....................LU 2011

James Kenneth Vogelsang ....................LU 963

Loren Earl Voreis ..................................LU 1034

Joseph Fredrick Votra, Sr. ........................LU 31

Neil Eugene Waas ................................LU 1333

Glenn Richard Wagar, II. ......................LU 1803

Douglas Ray Walter ...............................LU 419

Bruce Alan Walters.................................LU 479

David Bryant Ward.................................LU 636

William Walter Warne ..........................LU 1778

Mark Wasserman .................................LU 1087

Ronald Allen Watkins ............................LU 357

John Peter Weyker .................................LU 770

Thomas Edward Whisenand ................LU 1094

David Ray White ......................................LU 43

Scott Allen White .................................LU 1072

Kevin Michael Whitmire ........................LU 751

Todd Scott Williams ...............................LU 707

Ralph Adam Willis ................................LU 1955

Jeffrey Lee Wilson .................................LU 530

David Anthony Witt .............................LU 1136

William Lee Workman..........................LU 1756

Michael Edward Worms .........................LU 751

Rodolfo Jose Yaber ..................................LU 27

Anthony Yer Yang ....................................LU 61

Mark Anthony Yarbrough ...................LU 1184

Stephen Edwin York ..............................LU 779

John Thomas Yorkanis ...........................LU 694

Richard William Yudt .............................LU 357

Monica Michele Zarcone .....................LU 1185

Kristi Zea ................................................LU 829

Bennie Zientek, Jr. ...............................LU 8000

Michael Russell Zizak ............................LU 707
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Teresa Vanderpol

Don Hilton

DISTRICT COUNCIL 81 | IOWA, COLORADO, ILLINOIS, 
NEBRASKA, SOUTH DAKOTA, WYOMING

Congratulations to retired Brother 
Don Hilton from District Council 
81/Local Union 214 (Sioux City, 
Iowa), who recently received his 
50-year pin! Hilton is a painter 
by trade and served as a business 
agent for LU 214. He is pictured 
on the left receiving his pin from 
DC 81 Field Representative and 
Organizer Kenny Cortum.

Congratulations to District Council 81 member Teresa 
Vanderpol on her well-earned retirement! Sister 
Vanderpol, a 29-year member of Public Professional 
and Maintenance Employee Local 2003 (Iowa), 
worked as an associate for Ottumwa Community 
School District. She was extremely dedicated to her 
union and served as bargaining unit chair for several 
years. Enjoy your retirement, Sister Vanderpol! 

 Retiree, Brother Don Hilton

Retiree, Sister Teresa Vanderpol
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Local First Last Amount Local First Last Amount

1 George Ott $3,000.00

3 Martin Asencio $3,000.00

3 Adalberto Carmona $3,000.00

3 Paul Lawhorn $3,000.00

3 George Silva $3,000.00

4 Barry Allen $3,000.00

6 Donald Gordon $3,000.00

10 Jose Davila $3,000.00

12 Daniel Hernandez $3,000.00

12 William Vines $3,000.00

21 Paul Slotilick $3,000.00

38 Robert Crowell $3,000.00

53 Josh Springer $3,000.00

57 Norman Minton $3,000.00

57 James Roberts $3,000.00

57 William Snider $3,000.00

61 Dean Buzay $3,000.00

79 Robert Gregg Sr. $3,000.00

85 Robert Donnell $3,000.00

86 Roberto Chaidez $3,000.00

86 Lambert Gilbert $3,000.00

123 Suzanne Barger $3,000.00

123 Roger Hood $3,000.00

130 Robert Haynes $3,000.00

130 Michael Morris $3,000.00

138 Manuel Mendes $3,000.00

138 Hermann Reiter $3,000.00

138 Joseph Sidley $3,000.00

147 Patrick Spillane $3,000.00

147 Jacob Vanyzendoorn $3,000.00

150 Joseph Chiarilli $3,000.00

155 Eugene Froehling $3,000.00

157 Robert Butterly $3,000.00

157 Tyler Murray $3,000.00

157 Drake Vanduzer $3,000.00

159 Billy Cupples $3,000.00

169 Eric Lemi $3,000.00

184 Eugene Brunderman $3,000.00

184 Freddie Guerrero $3,000.00

194 John Allard $3,000.00

194 Harry Hoffman $3,000.00

194 Donald Jacobs $3,000.00

194 Richard MacDonald $3,000.00

197 Eugene Adams $3,000.00

226 Russell Moon $3,000.00

238 Gene Collins $3,000.00

246 Keith Kenworthy $3,000.00

252 John Ritzheimer $3,000.00

257 Ruth Klepper $3,000.00

273 Jimmy Cashmore $3,000.00

273 Denise Sanford $3,000.00

357 Christopher Golds $3,000.00

363 Joseph Swope $3,000.00

372 Jerry Cowgill $3,000.00

386 Michael Fjeldstad $3,000.00

386 Leroy Naribeau $3,000.00

386 Dale Novak $3,000.00

386 Allan Sonnenfeld $3,000.00

409 Frank Updike $3,000.00

424 Ronald Cureton $3,000.00

427 Burt Graham $3,000.00

437 Phillip Terry $3,000.00

452 Samuel Belcher $3,000.00

460 Vyron Ispoglou $3,000.00

460 Thomas Scott $3,000.00

469 Chase Brankle $3,000.00

476 Hjoseph Coppola $3,000.00

476 Anastasios Efthimiou $3,000.00

476 George Hazimihalis $3,000.00

476 Elefterios Heliconas $3,000.00

476 Robert Landgraff $3,000.00

476 Patrick Mckenna Sr. #3,000.00

487 Shelby Medlock $3,000.00

487 Mack Parker $3,000.00

487 Albert Smith $3,000.00

507 Jerome Downey $3,000.00

507 Charles Gonzales $3,000.00

507 Jose Powell $3,000.00

507 Astro Tortolano $3,000.00

510 George Minero $3,000.00

510 Patrick O'Connor $3,000.00

510 Fred Zoellner $3,000.00

513 Clifford Combest $3,000.00

513 Frederick Neuroth $3,000.00

530 Dean Minto $3,000.00

550 Delfina Guerra $3,000.00

550 Tracey Ward $3,000.00

557 Rafaelle Capizzano $3,000.00

557 Antonio Cucullo $3,000.00

558 Gary Hanson $3,000.00

558 Dennis McGuire $3,000.00

577 Anthony Fahy $3,000.00

Local First Last Amount

607 Luis Canales $3,000.00

607 John Mumma $3,000.00

636 Dwayne Darling $3,000.00

636 George Flores $3,000.00

636 Ramon Parson $3,000.00

639 George Sharpe $3,000.00

677 Arthur Griswold $3,000.00

707 Robert Bertram $3,000.00

707 Gerald Dolan $3,000.00

707 Alan Kopper $3,000.00

707 Frank Mercadante $3,000.00

707 Freddy Mercado $3,000.00

718 Michael Altamirano $3,000.00

718 Michael O'Neill $3,000.00

740 Otto Ehlers $3,000.00

740 David Hassi $3,000.00

740 Keith Poppert $3,000.00

751 James Holdcroft $3,000.00

756 Paschal Roberts $3,000.00

767 William Meehan $3,000.00

767 Daniel Musselman $3,000.00

804 Matthew Dinges $3,000.00

806 David Alomia Jr. $3,000.00

820 Richard Todd $3,000.00

823 Antonio Balcorta $3,000.00

831 Agostino Provenzano $2,500.00

880 Jason Sundin $3,000.00

890 Larry Sheetz $3,000.00

913 Gunnar Hansen $3,000.00

930 Joseph Darr $3,000.00

939 Walter Laforest $3,000.00

963 James Allen Buter $3,000.00

970 Randall Thompson $3,000.00

1009 Richard Lane $3,000.00

1036 Burt Baljeu $3,000.00

1036 Jimmy Martinez $3,000.00

1036 Jose Ramirez $3,000.00

1044 Dean Curtis $3,000.00

1047 Joseph Ivin $3,000.00

1072 Ralph Caudill $3,000.00

1072 Brady Cline $3,000.00

1136 Baldamar Jiron $3,000.00

1144 Ira Barcus III $3,000.00

1144 Cortez Blair $3,000.00

1156 Samuel Davis $3,000.00

1165 Clete Bailey $3,000.00
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Local First Last Amount Local First Last Amount Local First Last Amount

607 Luis Canales $3,000.00

607 John Mumma $3,000.00

636 Dwayne Darling $3,000.00

636 George Flores $3,000.00

636 Ramon Parson $3,000.00

639 George Sharpe $3,000.00

677 Arthur Griswold $3,000.00

707 Robert Bertram $3,000.00

707 Gerald Dolan $3,000.00

707 Alan Kopper $3,000.00

707 Frank Mercadante $3,000.00

707 Freddy Mercado $3,000.00

718 Michael Altamirano $3,000.00

718 Michael O'Neill $3,000.00

740 Otto Ehlers $3,000.00

740 David Hassi $3,000.00

740 Keith Poppert $3,000.00

751 James Holdcroft $3,000.00

756 Paschal Roberts $3,000.00

767 William Meehan $3,000.00

767 Daniel Musselman $3,000.00

804 Matthew Dinges $3,000.00

806 David Alomia Jr. $3,000.00

820 Richard Todd $3,000.00

823 Antonio Balcorta $3,000.00

831 Agostino Provenzano $2,500.00

880 Jason Sundin $3,000.00

890 Larry Sheetz $3,000.00

913 Gunnar Hansen $3,000.00

930 Joseph Darr $3,000.00

939 Walter Laforest $3,000.00

963 James Allen Buter $3,000.00

970 Randall Thompson $3,000.00

1009 Richard Lane $3,000.00

1036 Burt Baljeu $3,000.00

1036 Jimmy Martinez $3,000.00

1036 Jose Ramirez $3,000.00

1044 Dean Curtis $3,000.00

1047 Joseph Ivin $3,000.00

1072 Ralph Caudill $3,000.00

1072 Brady Cline $3,000.00

1136 Baldamar Jiron $3,000.00

1144 Ira Barcus III $3,000.00

1144 Cortez Blair $3,000.00

1156 Samuel Davis $3,000.00

1165 Clete Bailey $3,000.00

1168 James Spencer $3,000.00

1175 David Wrench $3,000.00

1178 Steve Sels $3,000.00

1185 Jack Oliver $3,000.00

1185 Gary Sullins $3,000.00

1195 David Hill $3,000.00

1195 Charles Price $3,000.00

1199 Ronny Leuthauser $3,000.00

1236 Thomas Arthur $3,000.00

1247 Robert Gripton $3,000.00

1247 Oscar Hafner $3,000.00

1247 Joseph Johnson $3,000.00

1247 Tommy Villanueva $3,000.00

1275 William Reed $3,000.00

1275 Todd Ryals $3,000.00

1285 Herman Prescott $3,000.00

1331 Danny Scioli Sr. $3,000.00

1399 Rayburn Barron $3,000.00

1399 Gabriel Chavez $3,000.00

1439 Walter Morash $3,000.00

1456 Sean Bobb $3,000.00

1456 John Brennan $3,000.00

1456 Michael Maldonado $3,000.00

1494 Alex Carriero $3,000.00

1527 Stephen Grundy $3,000.00

1527 Clifford Klassen $3,000.00

1590 Ross Johnson $3,000.00

1778 Adam Archie $3,000.00

1778 William Mullins $3,000.00

1778 Joseph Rodriguez $3,000.00

1819 Goran Oberg $3,000.00

1889 Clark Aramaki $3,000.00

1891 Altamont Cornie $3,000.00

1891 Lino De Lazzari $3,000.00

1891 Oliver Mandic $3,000.00

1891 Mario Perin $3,000.00

1904 Danyelle Theriault $3,000.00

1922 Terrance Davis $3,000.00

1940 Samuel Turner $3,000.00

1945 Victor Shannon $3,000.00

1955 Francis DeJesse $3,000.00

1959 Doug Melson $3,000.00

1974 Cayo Dominguez $3,000.00

2001 Blake Clawson $3,000.00

2001 Paul Farmer $3,000.00

2006 Ronald Augustine Jr. $3,000.00

2012 Randall Cobleigh $3,000.00

2012 George Stewart $3,000.00

2015 Daniel Rogers $3,000.00

2018 Charles Cochran $3,000.00

2341 Derek Aubuchon $3,000.00

2341 Bobby Griffin $3,000.00

2341 Hans Lettner $3,000.00

2341 Paul Orf $3,000.00

2352 Albert Charles $3,000.00

2352 Salvatore Saputo Sr. $3,000.00

2353 Robert Hackman $3,000.00

2353 Kenneth Ruebelman $3,000.00

8A-28A Miguel Mendez-Pagan $3,000.00
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